
     
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL 

And JOINT MEETING Of The 
CITY OF CUDAHY AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE CUDAHY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
Monday, December 14, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Council / Agency Member Garcia 
Council / Agency Member Guerrero 
Council / Agency Member Sanchez 
Vice Mayor / Vice Chair Hernandez 
Mayor / Chair Markovich 
 
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
 

  

“Members of the Public are advised that all PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES and any OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES are to be turned off upon entering the City Council Chambers.” If you need to 
have a discussion with someone in the audience, kindly step out into the lobby. 
 
Written materials distributed to the City Council within 72 hours of the City Council meeting are available for 
public inspection immediately upon distribution in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall located at 5220 Santa Ana 
Street, Cudahy, CA 90201.    
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, you should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (323) 773-5143 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  
 

CUDAHY CITY  
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

5240 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA 90201 

Phone: (323) 773-5143 
Fax: (323) 771-2072 

 
REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 

LOCATION: 
Bedwell Hall 

5240 Santa Ana Street 
Cudahy, CA  90201 

Cristian Markovich, Mayor 
Christian Hernandez, Vice Mayor   
Baru Sanchez, Council Member  
Jack Guerrero, Council Member 
Chris Garcia, Council Member  
 

Page 1 of 237



4. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Presentation by Cal Poly Pomona Students regarding a Proposed Project Establishing and 
Creating Community Involvement and Vision 
 

B. Assembly Bill 2 (Alejo) Community Revitalization Authority Update 
 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

 
(Mayor:  This is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council / Agency on matters 
relating only to items on the agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the yellow form 
located at the Council Chambers entrance and submit it to the City Clerk.  Speakers that submitted 
comment cards within the first 20 minutes of the meeting will be permitted to speak. Pursuant to 
Government Code section 54954.3(b), time limits are placed on the public comment period.  The 
Mayor will announce when public comment cards may no longer be submitted to the City Clerk 
and no public comment cards will be accepted after the Mayor’s announcement.  Each person who 
submits a public comment card will be allowed to speak only once and will be limited to three (3) 
minutes.  When addressing the Council / Agency please speak into the microphone and voluntarily 
state your name and address.)   

 
 
6. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS / REQUESTS FOR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
(This is the time for the City Council / Agency to comment on any topics related to “City Business,” 
including announcements, reflections on city / regional events, response to public comments, 
suggested discussion topics for future council meetings, general concerns about particular city 
matters, questions to the staff, and directives to the staff (subject to approval / consent of the City 
Council majority members present, regarding staff directives).  Each Council / Agency Member will 
be allowed to speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
City Council Members shall not use this comment period for serial discussions or debate between 
members on City business matters not properly agendized.  The City Attorney shall be responsible 
for regulating this aspect of the proceeding.) 
 
 

7. CITY MANAGER REPORT (information only) 
 
 

8. REPORTS REGARDING AD HOC, ADVISORY, STANDING, OR OTHER COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS 
 
A. TECHNOLOGY AD HOC COMMITTEE  

(Vice Mayor Hernandez and Council Member Garcia) – Formed November 23, 2015 
 

B. NATIONWIDE AD HOC COMMITTEE  
(Council Members Garcia and Sanchez) – Formed October 12, 2015 
 

Page 2 of 237



C. AD HOC COMMITTEE TO RECOMMEND APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS CITY 
COMMISSIONS 
(Vice Mayor Hernandez and Council Member Sanchez) – Formed August 24, 2015 

 
D. AD HOC BOOK FAIR COMMITTEE 

(Mayor Markovich and Council Member Garcia) 
 

E. CUDAHY YOUTH LEADERSHIP AD HOC COMMITTEE 
(Mayor Markovich and Council Member Garcia) 
 

F. AD HOC BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 
(Mayor Markovich and Council Member Sanchez) 
 

G. SUCCESSOR AGENCY COMMITTEE 
(Mayor Markovich and Vice Mayor Hernandez) 
 

H. CASINO AND GAMING COMMITTEE 
(Vice Mayor Hernandez and Council Member Sanchez) 
 

I. AD HOC CLARA PARK EXPANSION COMMITTEE 
(Council Member Garcia and Mayor Markovich) 
 

J. FARMERS MARKET/SWAPMEET COMMITTEE 
(Council Member Garcia and Council Member Sanchez) 
 

K. CONTRACTS COMMITTEE 
(Council Member Garcia) 
 

L. PENSION REFORM COMMITTEE 
(Mayor Markovich) 
 
 

9. WAIVER OF FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
 

(Consideration to waive full text reading of all Resolutions and Ordinances by single motion made at 
the start of each meeting, subject to the ability of the City Council / Agency to read the full text of 
selected resolutions and ordinances when the item is addressed by subsequent motion.)  
(COUNCIL / AGENCY) 
 
Recommendation:   Approve the Waiver of Full Reading of Resolutions and Ordinances.  
 
 

10. CONSENT CALENDAR (Items 10A through 10K) 
 
(Items under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There 
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council / Agency Member so requests, in which 
event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately.) 
 

  

Page 3 of 237



SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
 
A. Consideration of Successor Agency to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Approving a Second 

Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Urban Futures, Inc., and Adopt a Proposed 
Resolution Approving an Emergency Loan Agreement for Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule 16-17:8 for Urban Futures, Inc.  (page 11) 

 
Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation:  1) Adopt a proposed resolution approving the Second Amendment 

to the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Urban Futures, 
Inc. for the preparation of a Long-Range Property Management 
Plan; 

 
2) Authorize the Executive Director to execute the Second 

Amendment to the PSA between the Successor Agency and Urban 
Futures; 
 

3) Adopt a proposed resolution approving Successor Agency Loan 
Agreement No. 16-17:8; and 

 
4) Authorize the Executive Director to execute Successor Agency 

Loan Agreement No. 16-17:8 in the amount of $10,000 and any 
documents, as necessary, in order to implement the proposed 
resolution on behalf of the Successor Agency. 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

B. Consideration to Approve a Second Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with 
Vasquez & Company, LLP for Audit Services  (page 63) 
 
Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to approve a Second Amendment to the 

Professional Services Agreement with Vasquez & Company, LLP for 
audit and other services for a two year term to audit Fiscal Years 2014-15 
and 2015-16 with an option for two one-year extensions. 

 
C. Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Approving a Loan Agreement Between the City 

and the Successor Agency  (page 93) 
 
Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to: 
 

1) Adopt a proposed resolution approving a loan agreement between 
the City and the Successor Agency; and 

Page 4 of 237



 
2) Authorize the City Manager to sign Successor Agency Loan 

Agreement No. 16-17:8 in the amount of $10,000 and any documents, 
as necessary, in order to implement the proposed resolution on 
behalf of the City. 

 
D. Consideration to Approve the City Demands and Payroll including the Cash and Investment 

Report for the month of October 2015  (page 105) 
 

Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to approve the Demands and Payroll in 

the amount of $1,186,494.84 including the Cash and Investment Report 
by Fund for the month of October 2015. 

 
E. Consideration to Approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for the month of 

October 2015  (page 127) 
 
Presented by Finance Director 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to approve the Local Agency Investment 

Fund (LAIF) Report for the month of October 2015 in the amount of 
$5,280,472.95. 

 
F. Consideration to Review and Approve the Draft Minutes of June 8, 2015, for the Regular Meeting 

of the City Council and the Joint Meeting of the City of Cudahy as Successor Agency to the 
Cudahy Development Commission (Agency)  (page 131) 
 
Presented by Interim City Clerk 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to review and approve the City Council / 

Agency draft minutes for June 8, 2015. 
 

G. Consideration to Receive and File Aging and Senior Citizen Commission Minutes; Public Safety 
Commission Minutes; Planning Commission Minutes; and Parks and Recreation Commission 
Minutes  (page 141) 

 
Presented by Acting Community Development Director 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to receive and file the minutes for the: 

 1) Aging and Senior Citizen Commission meeting of October 12, 2015; 
 2) Public Safety Commission meeting of October 13, 2015 

3) Planning Commission meeting of October 19, 2015; and 
4) Parks and Recreation Commission meeting of October 23, 2015. 

 
  

Page 5 of 237



H. Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Supporting and Advocating for the Earned 
Income Tax Credit (EITC) and Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) Program  (page 163) 

 
Presented by City Manager 
 
Recommendation:  The City Council is requested to adopt a proposed resolution supporting 

and advocating for the Federal and State Earned Income Tax Credit 
(EITC) and Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) programs. 

 
I. Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Joe A. Gonsalves & Son for 

Advocacy Services  (page 173) 
 
Presented by Finance Director  
 
Recommendation: The City Council / Successor Agency is requested to approve a 

Professional Services Agreement with Joe A. Gonsalves & Son for a six 
month term for advocacy services for items that need to be approved by 
the California Department of Finance pursuant to disillusion law. 

 
J. Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Affirming the City’s Commitment to Gender Pay 

Equality  (page 183) 
 
Presented by Acting Human Resources Specialist 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to adopt a proposed resolution affirming 

the City’s commitment to gender pay equality. 
 

K. Consideration to Approve a First Amendment to the Legal Services Agreement with Liebert 
Cassidy Whitmore for Employment Matters and Labor Negotiations  (page 187) 
 
Presented by City Manager 
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to approve the first amendment to the 

Legal Services Agreement with Liebert Cassidy Whitmore for 
employment related matters and labor negotiations. 

 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Approving Projects/Programs for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding During the Fiscal Year 2016-17  (page 203) 
  
Presented by Acting Community Development Director  
 
Recommendation: The City Council is requested to: 

1) Conduct a public hearing; 

 2) Consider all public testimony; and 

Page 6 of 237



 3) Adopt a proposed resolution approving Projects/Programs for 
Community Development Block Grant Funding during Fiscal Year 
2016-17. 

 
 

12. BUSINESS SESSION - None 
 

 
13. COUNCIL DISCUSSION  

 
A. Council Member Garcia 

i. Renters Rights 

 
 

14. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (Closed Session) 
 

(Mayor: Speakers that submitted comment cards within the first 20 minutes of the meeting will be 
permitted to speak. Each person will be allowed to speak only once on closed session items and will 
be limited to three (3) minutes.  When addressing the Council please speak into the microphone and 
voluntarily state your name and address.) 

 
 
 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
 

This is the time at which the City Council will meet in closed session to go over items of business on the 
closed session agenda.  It should be noted that because Councilman Guerrero will be participating from 
Bedwell Hall via teleconference, he will be patched into the closed session chambers from Bedwell Hall 
via telephone device.  At this time, all persons other than Councilman Guerrero and City personnel 
authorized by either the City Manager or the City Attorney will not be allowed to remain in Bedwell 
Hall.   Once closed session is completed and the City Council returns from closed session into open 
session, members of the public may then reenter the Council Chamber to rejoin the proceedings.  

 
 

15. CLOSED SESSION  
 

A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (2) and 54956.9(e) (1) – Conference with Legal 
Counsel to Discuss Matter Involving Potential Litigation and/or Significant Exposure to 
Litigation – [Two (2) Matters] 
 
This Matter will be heard jointly by the Cudahy City Council and the Cudahy City Council in its 
capacity as Successor Agency to the Cudahy Redevelopment Agency.  

B. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 – Conference with Real Property Negotiator 
Location of Property: 4819 Patata, 8420 S. Atlantic Ave. (APN 622-034-014, 032, 040-41), Cudahy, 
CA 90201 

Page 7 of 237



 
City’s Negotiator:  City Manager Jose E. Pulido  
Party Negotiating With:  Cudahy LF, LLC  
Under Discussion:  Discussion of both price and terms of payment as related to purchase of 
subject property  
 

C. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6(a) – Conference with Labor Negotiator Regarding 
Unrepresented Employee 
 
Title of Position Subject to Negotiation:  City Manager  
Designated Representative:  City Attorney 
 

D. Pursuant to Government Code Sections 54956.9(d)(2), 54956.9(d)(4) and 54956.9e(5) –  Conference 
with Legal Counsel to Discuss Matter Involving Anticipated Litigation/Significant Exposures to 
Litigation – [Two (2) potential cases] 
 

E. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6(a) – Conference with Labor Negotiator Regarding 
Represented Employees 
 
City’s Designated Representative(s) for Negotiations:  City Manager Jose E. Pulido and Special  
Counsel Oliver Yee 
Employee Organization:  Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees Association (CMEA) 
 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

 
16. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT  

 
 

17. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

(Mayor:  This is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council / Agency on matters under 
the City Council’s jurisdiction.  Anyone wishing to speak, please fill out the pink form located at the 
Council Chambers entrance and submit it to the City Clerk.  Speakers that submitted comment cards 
within the first 20 minutes of the meeting will be permitted to speak. Pursuant to Government Code 
section 54954.3(b), time limits are placed on the public comment period.  The Mayor will announce 
when public comment cards may no longer be submitted to the City Clerk and no public comment 
cards will be accepted after the Mayor’s announcement.  Each person who submits a public 
comment card will be allowed to speak only once and will be limited to three (3) minutes.  When 
addressing the Council / Agency please speak into the microphone and voluntarily state your name 
and address.)   
 
 

18. ADJOURNMENT  
 

Cudahy City Council / Agency will adjourn to a Regular and Joint Meeting as Successor Agency to 
the Cudahy Development Commission on Monday, September 28, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. 

Page 8 of 237



Page 9 of 237



 
 

Blank Page 

Page 10 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  December 14, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director  

Subject: Consideration of Successor Agency to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Approving 
a Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Urban 
Futures Inc. and Adopt a Proposed Resolution Approving an Emergency Loan 
Agreement for Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 16-17 for Urban 
Futures, Inc. 

   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Successor Agency is requested to: 
 
1. Adopt a proposed resolution approving the Second Amendment to the Professional 

Services Agreement (PSA) (Attachment A) with Urban Futures, Inc. (Urban Futures) for 
the preparation of a Long-Range Property Management Plan (LRPMP); 
 

2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute the Second Amendment to the PSA 
(Attachment B) between the Successor Agency and Urban Futures; 

 
3. Adopt a proposed resolution approving Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 16-17:8  

(Attachment E); and 
 

4. Authorize the Executive Director to execute Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 16-
17:8 in the amount of $10,000 (Attachment F) and any documents, as necessary, in 
order to implement the proposed resolution on behalf of the Successor Agency. 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
1. On February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency to the Community Development Commission 

 

Item Number 

10A 

Page 11 of 237



of the City of Cudahy began performing its functions under the Dissolution Law, Parts 1.8 
and 1.85 of the Health and Safety Code, as amended by Assembly Bill 1484 and other 
subsequent legislation (together, the “Dissolution Law”), to administer the enforceable 
obligations reported on a Recognized Obligations Payment Schedule (ROPS) and 
otherwise unwind the former Agency’s affairs, all subject to the review and approval by 
the Oversight Board. ROPS means the document setting forth the minimum payment 
amounts and due dates of payments required by enforceable obligations for each six-
month fiscal period. 

 
2. On August 19, 2014, the Successor Agency signed a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) 

with Urban Futures, Inc. for the preparation of a LRPMP. 
 

3. On February 17, 2015, the Successor Agency amended a PSA with Urban Futures 
increasing the maximum amount to $45,000 for the preparation of a LRPMP. 

 
4. On November 12, 2015, the Successor Agency submitted a LRPMP to the DOF for review 

and approval prior to January 1, 2016. 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
The Dissolution Law requires Successor Agencies to submit a LRPMP of their real property 
interests for approval by the Oversight Board and DOF no later than December 31, 2015. The 
LRPMP must include specified information and proposal for the use or disposition of each 
property. The LRPMP was approved by the Oversight Board and was submitted to DOF for 
review and approval.  
 
The requested amount covers forecasted fees in response to questions that may be raised or 
were raised by DOF, Oversight Board, and Successor Agency members concerning the LRPMP 
prior to DOF’s approval of the LRPMP. Finally, the $10,000 requested amount includes 
forecasted fees to provide guidance concerning the implementation and administration of the 
DOF approved LRPMP.  
 
The Successor Agency estimates that funds to be remitted to the Successor Agency from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for the former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency, for the period of time between July 1, 2016 and 
June 30, 2017 under ROPS 16–17, together with the cash and other immediately available 
funds which are reasonably estimated to be available to the Successor Agency on or after July 
1, 2016, shall not be sufficient to pay the enforceable obligations of the former Cudahy 
Community Development Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency to Urban Futures, 

Page 12 of 237



which shall become due and payable during the period of time covered by ROPS 15–16B, 
unless this emergency loan is approved. 
 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
Once this loan is approved by the City Council, the Successor Agency and the Oversight Board, 
and listed on ROPS 16–17, the loan then becomes a new enforceable obligation of the 
Successor Agency and subject to separate approval by the California Department of Finance.  
 
This loan must be listed on the final form of ROPS 15–16B in order to be reimbursed by the 
City. If this loan is not fully approved and formalized, the City is exposed to a risk that the 
monies described in the accompanying loan documents may not be repaid to the City.    
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Funds shall be made available to the Successor Agency from the City’s General Fund in the 
amount of $10,000. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Proposed Resolution, Approving a Second Amendment to the Professional Services 

Agreement with Urban Futures, Inc. 
B. Proposed Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Urban Futures, Inc. 
C. First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Urban Futures, Inc. 
D. Professional Services Agreement with Urban Futures, Inc. 
E. Proposed Resolution, Approving Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 16-17:8 
F. Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 16-17:8 

Page 13 of 237



RESOLUTION NO. SA _______ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOR THE 
FORMER CUDAHY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
COMMISSION/REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPROVING 
THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH URBAN FUTURES, INC. 
IN CONNECTION WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
REVIEW OF A LONG-RANGE PROPERTY 
MANAGEMENT PLAN PURSUANT TO HEALTH AND 
SAFETY CODE SECTION 34191.5(B) 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy (the “City”) authorized the formation and 

operation of a community redevelopment agency within the territorial jurisdiction of the 
City pursuant to California state law (“State law”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/ 
Redevelopment Agency undertook the redevelopment of certain areas of the City in 
reliance upon the provisions of State law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of California (the “State”) has ordered the former Cudahy 
Community Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency to be dissolved under 
the provisions of ABX1 26 (Stats 2011-12, 1st Ex. Sess., Chapter 5), as amended by AB 
1484 (Stats 2012, Chapter 26), and collectively the State legislation identified in this 
sentence is referred to herein as the “State Redevelopment Dissolution Law”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City as Successor Agency to the former Cudahy Community 
Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency (“Successor Agency”) has initiated 
the implementation of the State Redevelopment Dissolution Law; and 
 

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code section 34191.5(b) requires the Successor 
Agency to prepare a long-range property management plan that addresses the 
disposition and use of the real properties of the former Cudahy Community 
Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about August 19, 2014, the Parties executed that certain 

agreement entitled “2014 Professional Services Agreement” for the performance of 
professional management services by Urban Futures, Inc. (“Urban Futures”), regarding 
its preparation of a Long-Range Property Management Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties subsequently amended the 2014 Professional Services 
Agreement by way of a First Amendment dated February 17, 2015 (the 2014 
Professional Services Agreement and said First Amendment are collectively the 
“Amended Master Agreement”); and 

 

Page 14 of 237



WHEREAS, the Successor Agency and Urban Futures wish to modify and 
amend the terms of the Amended Master Agreement, as permitted under section 6.5 of 
the Amended Master Agreement to increase the Contract Price to ________________ 
as set forth in the Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement, attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Second Amendment”); and 
 

WHEREAS, Urban Futures, Inc. represents that it is fully qualified to perform 
such professional services as set forth in the Second Amendment, by virtue of its 
experience and the training, education and expertise of its principals, employees, and 
subcontractors; and 

 
WHEREAS, Urban Futures requires additional funds to provide the Successor 

Agency professional guidance for responding to questions that the Department of 
Finance and/or other interested parties have raised and/or may raise concerning the 
proposed Long Range Asset Management Plan that the Successor Agency submitted to 
Department of Finance on or about November 12, 2015 for the Department’s review 
and approval and also to provide the Successor Agency guidance concerning the 
implementation and administration of the Department of Finance approved Long Range 
Property Management Plan. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER 

CUDAHY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION/REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and 

incorporated herein by reference.   
 
SECTION 2. Approval of Professional Services Agreement.  The Successor 

Agency approves the Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with 
Urban Futures regarding its preparation of a Long-Range Property Management Plan, 
in accordance with Health and Safety Code section 34191.5(b). 

 
SECTION 3. Execution of Loan Agreement.  The Executive Director is 

authorized and directed to take such other and further action consistent with this 
Resolution and sign any documents, as necessary, in order to implement this 
Resolution on behalf of the Successor Agency.  

 
SECTION 4. Direction to Successor Agency Staff.  Successor Agency staff is 

directed to cause the Agreement to be enrolled as a Successor Agency obligation on 
the next Recognized Obligations Payment Schedule (“ROPS”). 

 
SECTION 5. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption.  The secretary to 

the Successor Agency shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 
 
 

Page 15 of 237



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Successor Agency to the former Cudahy 
Community Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency at its meeting on this 
14th day of December, 2015. 

 
       
 

______________________________  
      Cristian Markovich 

Chair  
 

 
ATTEST:       
 
 
___________________________   
Laura Valdivia     
Secretary     
    
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 

 
 
I, Laura Valdivia, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing Resolution 

No. SA 15-03 was passed, approved, and adopted by the Successor Agency to the 
former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency of the 
City of Cudahy, signed by the Chair and attested by the Chair at a meeting of said 
Successor held on this _________ day of December, 2015, and that said Resolution 
was adopted by the following votes to wit: 

 
 AYES:   
 NOES:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 ABSENT:  

 
 
   ________________________________ 
   Laura Valdivia 
   Secretary to the Successor Agency 

 

Page 16 of 237



EXHIBIT A: 
 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
URBAN FUTURES, INC. 

 
 

Page 17 of 237



 
 

2015 
SECOND AMENDMENT 

TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(Parties:  Urban Futures, Inc. and Successor Agency) 

 
THIS SECOND AMENDMENT (“Second Amendment”) to that certain agreement 

entitled “2014 Professional Services Agreement” described herein below, is hereby made and 
entered into this _________ day of December 2015 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the 
City of Cudahy as Successor Agency to the former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission/Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor Agency”) and Urban Futures, Inc. 
(herinafter “Consultant”).  For purposes of this Second Amendment, the capitalized term 
“Parties” shall be a collective reference to the Successor Agency and Consultant and the 
capitalized term “Party” shall refer to the Successor Agency or Consultant, as appropriate. 
 

RECITALS 
 

This Second Amendment is made and entered into with respect to the following facts: 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy (the “City”) authorized the formation and operation of a 
community redevelopment agency within the territorial jurisdiction of the City pursuant to 
California state law (“State law”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Redevelopment 
Agency undertook the redevelopment of certain areas of the City in reliance upon the provisions 
of State law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of California (the “State”) has ordered the former Cudahy 
Community Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency to be dissolved under the 
provisions of ABX1 26 (Stats 2011-12, 1st Ex. Sess., Chapter 5), as amended by AB 1484 (Stats 
2012, Chapter 26), and collectively the State legislation identified in this sentence is referred to 
herein as the “State Redevelopment Dissolution Law”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has elected to serve as Successor Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34173(b), the Successor Agency 
is a separate legal entity from the City; and 

Page 18 of 237



 
 WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has initiated the implementation of the State 
Redevelopment Dissolution Law; and 
 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 1484, specifically under Health and Safety Code section 
34191.5(b) requires that the successor agencies prepare a Long-Range Property Management 
Plan that addresses the disposition and use of the real properties of the former Cudahy 
Community Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about August 19, 2014, the Parties executed that certain agreement 

entitled “2014 Professional Services Agreement” for the performance of professional 
management services by Consultant, regarding Phase II, the preparation of a Long-Range 
Property Management Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties subsequently amended the 2014 Professional Services 
Agreement by way of a First Amendment dated February 17, 2015. The 2014 Professional 
Services Agreement as amended by said First Amendment is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Attachment “1,” and shall hereinafter be collectively referred to as the “Amended 
Master Agreement.” 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to modify and amend the terms of the Amended Master 
Agreement, as permitted under section 6.15 of the Amended Master Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, Consultant further represents that it is willing to accept responsibility for 

performing such services in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Second 
Amendment. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Section 1.3 (Compensation) of the Amended Master Agreement is hereby 
amended by increasing the amount of the Contract Price of $45,000 by the sum of 
___________________________ for a new total Contract Price sum of 
_________________________________.  
 

2. Pursuant to Section 1.5 (Extra Work) of the Amended Master Agreement, 
Consultant agrees to perform the Extra Work described in Attachment “2,” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein. 
 

3. Except as otherwise set forth in this Second Amendment, the Amended Master 
Agreement shall remain binding, controlling and in full force and effect.  Section 6.18 of the 

Page 19 of 237



Amended Master Agreement notwithstanding, this Second Amendment together with the 
Amended Master Agreement shall constitute the entire, complete, final and exclusive expression 
of the Parties with respect to the matters addressed. 
 

4. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this 
Second Amendment and the provisions of the Amended Master Agreement, the provisions of 
this Second Amendment shall control, but only in so far as such provisions conflict with the 
Amended Master Agreement and no further.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Second Amendment to be 
executed on the day and year first appearing above. 
 
 
 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY: 
 
City of Cudahy as Successor Agency to the 
former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission 
By:___________________________________ 

Jose E. Pulido, Executive Director 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
     Isabel Birrueta 
     Successor Agency Counsel 
 

 CONSULTANT 
 
Urban Futures, Inc.: 
 
 
By:_____________________________ 
      Michael P. Busch 
 
Title: ___________________________ 
 
 
 

 

Page 20 of 237



ATTACHMENT “1” 
AMENDED MASTER AGREEMENT 

 

Page 21 of 237



 
ATTACHMENT “2” 

EXTRA WORK 
 

The Extra Work involves work performed and/or guidance to the 
Successor Agency and its staff to respond to questions that have been and/or 
may be raised by Department of Finance, Oversight Board, and/or Successor 
Agency members and/or other interested parties concerning and/or in connection 
with the Long Range Asset Management Plan (“LRPMP”) that the Successor 
Agency submitted to Department of Finance on or about November 12, 2015 for 
the Department’s review and approval.  The Extra Work may also include 
guidance and/or work performed concerning the implementation and 
administration of the Department of Finance approved LRPMP.  

Page 22 of 237



Page 23 of 237



Page 24 of 237



Page 25 of 237



Page 26 of 237



Page 27 of 237



Page 28 of 237



Page 29 of 237



Page 30 of 237



Page 31 of 237



Page 32 of 237



Page 33 of 237



Page 34 of 237



Page 35 of 237



Page 36 of 237



Page 37 of 237



Page 38 of 237



Page 39 of 237



Page 40 of 237



Page 41 of 237



Page 42 of 237



Page 43 of 237



Page 44 of 237



Page 45 of 237



Page 46 of 237



Page 47 of 237



Page 48 of 237



Page 49 of 237



Page 50 of 237



Page 51 of 237



RESOLUTION NO. SA ____ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
FORMER CUDAHY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
COMMISSION/CUDAHY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
APPROVING A LOAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF CUDAHY AND THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
FORMER CUDAHY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
COMMISSION/ CUDAHY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(SUCCESSOR AGENCY LOAN AGREEMENT NO. 16-17:8. 

 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy (the “City”) authorized the formation and 
operation of a community redevelopment agency within the territorial jurisdiction of the 
City pursuant to California state law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy 
Redevelopment Agency (“RDA”) undertook the redevelopment of certain areas of the 
City in reliance upon the provisions of state law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of California (the “State”) has ordered the former Cudahy 
Community Redevelopment Agency to be dissolved under the provisions of ABX1 26 
(Stats 2011-12, 1st Ex. Sess., Chapter 5), as amended by AB 1484 (Stats 2012, 
Chapter 26), and collectively the State legislation identified in this sentence is referred 
to herein as the “State Redevelopment Dissolution Law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Successor Agency to the former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency (“Successor Agency”) has initiated the 
implementation of the State Redevelopment Dissolution Law, which includes the 
retention of Urban Futures, Inc. (“Urban Futures”) to assist with the preparation of a 
Long-Range Property Management Plan for the Successor Agency, as memorialized in 
that agreement between the Successor Agency and Urban Futures dated August 19, 
2014, and subsequently amended by way of a First Amendment dated February 17, 
2015 (the 2014 agreement and 2015 amendment are collectively the “Amended Initial 
Agreement”); and 
 

WHEREAS, Urban Futures requires additional funds to provide the Successor 
Agency professional guidance for responding to questions that the Department of 
Finance and/or other interested parties have raised and/or may raise concerning the 
proposed Long Range Asset Management Plan that the Successor Agency submitted to 
Department of Finance on or about November 12, 2015 for the Department’s review 
and approval and also to provide the Successor Agency guidance concerning the 
implementation and administration of the Department of Finance approved Long Range 
Property Management Plan;  

Page 52 of 237



WHEREAS, such funds are made available through the approval of the Loan 
Agreement No. 16-17:8  between the City of Cudahy and the Successor Agency, 
attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A,” (the “Loan Agreement”) then a 
corresponding amendment to the Amended Initial Agreement shall be made; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Successor Agency estimates that the amount of funds which are 
reasonably anticipated to be remitted to the Successor Agency from the Redevelopment 
Property Tax Trust Fund for the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/ 
Cudahy Redevelopment Agency, for the period of time between January 1, 2016 and 
June 30, 2016 under “Cudahy ROPS 15–16B, together with the cash and other 
immediately available funds which are reasonably estimated to be available to the 
Successor Agency on or after __________, 2016, shall not be sufficient to pay the 
enforceable obligations of the former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency to third parties, including Urban Futures, 
which shall become due and payable during the period of time covered by Cudahy 
ROPS 15–16B, unless the Loan Agreement is approved; and 
 

WHEREAS, as used herein, the term “Cudahy ROPS 16-17” means and refers to 
the draft document entitled “Cudahy ROPS 16-17,” as shall be presented to the 
governing body of the Successor Agency and the City Council, at a joint public meeting 
of the Successor Agency and the City Council.   

 
WHEREAS, the Loan Agreement shall be enrolled upon the final form of Cudahy 

ROPS 16-17 subject to such changes and edits as may be recommended by the staff of 
the Successor Agency, and approved by the Oversight Board for the former Cudahy 
Community Redevelopment Agency, as set forth under the State Redevelopment 
Dissolution Law; and 

 
WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Section 34173(h) provides authorization for 

the City to loan funds to the Successor Agency to pay for administrative costs, 
enforceable obligations, or project-related expenses, at the discretion of the City, and 
that such a loan shall be reflected on the recognized obligation payment schedule of the 
Successor Agency, which is subject to the approval of the Oversight Board for the 
Successor Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and the Successor Agency have both determined that it is 

necessary and appropriate to enter into the Loan Agreement, as herein provided below, 
in order that the City and the Successor Agency may comply with the State 
Redevelopment Dissolution.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY FOR THE FORMER CUDAHY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
COMMISSION/CUDAHY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DOES HEREBY FIND, 
ORDER AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Page 53 of 237



SECTION 1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and 
incorporated herein by reference.   

 
SECTION 2. Approval of Loan Agreement.  The Successor Agency hereby 

approves Loan Agreement No. 16-17:8 between the City of Cudahy and the Successor 
Agency to the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy 
Redevelopment Agency.  The Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to 
cause Loan Agreement No. 16-17:8 to be included on the recognized payment 
obligation schedule of the Successor Agency as shall be submitted to the State 
Department of Finance at the most feasible time after the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
SECTION 3. Execution of Loan Agreement.  The Executive Director is hereby 

authorized and directed to take such other and further action consistent with this 
Resolution and sign any documents, as necessary, in order to implement this 
Resolution on behalf of the Successor Agency.  

 
SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption.  The Secretary 

shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Successor Agency to the former Cudahy 

Community Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency at its meeting on this 
14th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
       
 

______________________________  
      Cristian Markovich 

Chair  
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
 
___________________________   
Laura Valdivia     
Secretary      
    
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54 of 237



 
CERTIFICATION 

 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY   ) 

 
 
I, Laura Valdivia, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing Resolution 

No. SA 15-03 was passed, approved, and adopted by the Successor Agency to the 
former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Redevelopment Agency of the 
City of Cudahy, signed by the Chair and attested by the Chair at a meeting of said 
Successor held on this 14th day of December, 2015, and that said Resolution was 
adopted by the following votes to wit: 

 
 AYES:   
 NOES:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 ABSENT:  

 
 
   ________________________________ 
   Laura Valdivia 
   Secretary 

 
 
 
 

Page 55 of 237



 
 

EXHIBIT A – LOAN AGREEMENT NO. 16-17:18 
 
 

Page 56 of 237



Attachment F 
 
 

2015 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
 

-and- 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY AS 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
FORMER CUDAHY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION/ 

CUDAHY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY LOAN AGREEMENT 
No. 16-17:8 

 
(NOT TO EXCEED: $___________) 

 
THIS SUCCESSOR AGENCY LOAN AGREEMENT No. 16-17:8 (the “Loan 
Agreement”) is dated as of ________________, 2015 by and between the City of 
Cudahy, a municipal corporation (the “City”) and the City of Cudahy, as successor 
agency to the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy 
Redevelopment Agency, a public body corporate and politic (the “Successor Agency”) 
and is entered into in light of the following facts: 
 

-RECITALS- 
 
1. The City of Cudahy (the “City”) authorized the formation and operation of a 

community redevelopment agency within the territorial jurisdiction of the City 
pursuant to California state law. 

 
2. The former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy 

Redevelopment Agency (“RDA”) undertook the redevelopment of certain areas of 
the City in reliance upon the provisions of state law. 

 
3. The State of California (the “State”) has ordered the former Cudahy Community 

Redevelopment Agency to be dissolved under the provisions of ABX1 26 (Stats 
2011-12, 1st Ex. Sess., Chapter 5), as amended by AB 1484 (Stats 2012, 
Chapter 26), and collectively the State legislation identified in this sentence is 
referred to herein as the “State Redevelopment Dissolution Law.” 

 
4. The Successor Agency has initiated the implementation of the State 

Redevelopment Dissolution Law, which includes the retention of Urban Futures, 
Inc. (“Urban Futures”) to assist with the preparation of a Long-Range Property 
Management Plan (“LRPMP”) for the Successor Agency, as memorialized in that 

Page 57 of 237



agreement between the Successor Agency and Urban Futures dated August 19, 
2014, and subsequently amended by way of a First Amendment dated February 
17, 2015 (the 2014 agreement and 2015 amendment are collectively the 
“Amended Initial Agreement”). 

 
5. Urban Futures requires additional funds in connection the Department of 

Finance’s review of the Long-Range Property Management Plan that the 
Successor Agency submitted to the Department of Finance for review and 
approval on or about November 12, 2015, and if such funds are made available 
through the approval of this Loan Agreement, a corresponding amendment to the 
Amended Initial Agreement shall be made.      

 
6. The Successor Agency has determined that the amount of funds remitted to the 

Successor Agency from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust, for the period of 
time corresponding with ROPS 15-16B between January 1, 2016 and June 30, 
2016, together with the cash and other immediately available funds on deposit in 
the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund of the Successor Agency, is not 
sufficient to pay the enforceable obligations of the former Cudahy Community 
Development Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency to third parties, 
including Urban Futures, which shall become due and payable during the period 
of time covered by Cudahy ROPS 15-16B, unless this Loan is approved.  

 
7.  Health and Safety Code Section 34173(h) provides authorization for the City to 

loan funds to the Successor Agency to pay for administrative costs, enforceable 
obligations, or project-related expenses, at the discretion of the City, and that 
such a loan shall be reflected on the recognized obligation payment schedule of 
the Successor Agency, which is subject to the approval of the Oversight Board 
for the Successor Agency. 

 
8. The City and the Successor Agency have both determined that it is necessary 

and appropriate to enter into the Loan Agreement, as herein provided below, in 
order that the City and the Successor Agency may comply with the State 
Redevelopment Dissolution.  
 

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND 
AGREEMENTS HEREINAFTER SET FORTH, THE CITY AND SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  Recitals.  The City and Successor Agency represent and warrant 
to each other that the information set forth in the preceding recital paragraphs is true 
and correct and is hereby incorporated into this Loan Agreement by reference as if fully 
set forth.  The purpose of this Loan Agreement is to satisfy the provisions of Health and 
Safety Code Section 34173(h) and to evidence the enforceable obligation of the 
Successor Agency which arises in favor of the City, in order for the Successor Agency 
to comply with its obligations under the State Redevelopment Dissolution Law and other 
applicable State and federal law. 

 

Page 58 of 237



SECTION 2.  Loan.  The City hereby agrees to make available from the available 
funds of the City as a loan to the Successor Agency (herein, the Loan”) a sum not-to-
exceed _____________.  Subject to the approval of this Loan Agreement by the 
Oversight Board, the City shall make the proceeds of the Loan available to the 
Successor Agency upon receipt of a written Loan Draw Request, executed by the 
Executive Director of the Successor Agency which references Section 3 and Section 4. 
 

SECTION 3.  Use of the Loan.  The Successor Agency shall utilize the proceeds 
of the Loan as follows:  

 
for work performed and/or guidance to the Successor Agency and its staff to 
respond to questions that have been and/or may be raised by Department of 
Finance, Oversight Board, and/or Successor Agency members and/or other 
interested parties concerning and/or in connection with the LRPMP that the 
Successor Agency submitted to Department of Finance on or about November 
12, 2015 for the Department’s review and approval.   
 
The Extra Work may also include guidance and/or work performed concerning 
the implementation and administration of the Department of Finance approved 
LRPMP.  The total amount of for this Extra Work as provided in the Second 
Amendment to the Initial Agreement shall not exceed $________, subject to 
the approval and direction of the Oversight Board.  
 
 

 SECTION 4.  Source of Repayment of the Loan. . The Loan shall be repaid by 
the Successor Agency from revenues available to the Successor Agency. 
 
 SECTION 5.  Placement of Loan Obligation on the Successor Agency’s 
ROPS 16-17 (July 2016– June 2017).  Provided that this Loan Agreement is approved, 
the Successor Agency shall include this Loan Agreement as a listed enforceable 
obligation on the ROPS 16-17 as shall be considered by the Successor Agency.  The 
amount of that listed obligation shall be the not-to-exceed Loan Amount as set forth in 
Section 2.  This Loan Agreement shall be included on each successive recognized 
obligation payment schedule for the Successor Agency for the former Cudahy 
Community Redevelopment Agency, until the City is repaid the principal balance of the 
Loan Amount as actually drawn by the Successor Agency as evidenced by the written 
Loan Draw Requests as set forth in Section 2.  The City Manager of the City shall 
establish a loan repayment ledger for the Loan and shall cause the outstanding unpaid 
principal balance of the Loan to the Successor Agency, as hereby approved, to be 
identified in the accounting records of the City, as a financial asset of the City which is 
payable to the City by the Successor Agency, in accordance with the terms set forth 
herein. 
 
 SECTION 6.  Term.  This Loan Agreement shall be in full force and effect from 
the date hereof until such time as the unpaid principal balance of the Loan has been 
repaid in full to the City. 
 

Page 59 of 237



 SECTION 7.  Entire Agreement.  This Loan Agreement constitutes the entire 
agreement by and between the City and the Successor Agency with respect to the 
subject matter of this Loan Agreement, and may be amended only in writing. 
 
 SECTION 8.  Notice of Default and Remedies.  In the event of a default, the 
party who alleges a default shall give the other party thirty (30) days written notice of 
such default, with a copy of such notice of default to the Oversight Board and to the 
State Department of Finance.  In the event that the party who is alleged to be in default 
does not promptly initiate a cure of the alleged default, and the applicable party hereto 
shall be entitled to pursue any and all remedies available under California law for 
purposes of enforcing the terms and conditions of this Loan Agreement. 
 
 APPROVED AND EXECUTED by signature of the authorized representatives of 
the City and the Successor Agency as of December 14, 2015. 
 
 

[SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 60 of 237



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: _____________________________ 
        Interim City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
        City Attorney 
 

CITY: 
 
City of Cudahy, a municipal corporation 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
       Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: _____________________________ 
        Interim Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
       City Attorney 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY: 
 
City of Cudahy As Successor Agency to the 
former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment 
Agency, a public body corporate and politic 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
        Jose E. Pulido, Executive Director 
 
 

 

Page 61 of 237



 
 

Blank Page 

Page 62 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  December 14, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director  

Subject: Consideration to Approve a Second Amendment to the Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) with Vasquez & Company, LLP for Audit Services  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to approve a Second Amendment to the Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) with Vasquez & Company, LLP (Vasquez) for audit and other services for a 
two year term to audit Fiscal Years (FYs) 2014-15 and 2015-16 with an option for two one-
year extensions. 
  
 
BACKGROUND 

 
1. In October 2014 Vasquez was appointed by the Board of Directors of the Cudahy 

Economic Development Corporation (EDC) to perform the initial audit of the EDC through 
the period ending December 31, 2013. Summaries of those audited basic financial 
statements were to be included in the City’s basic financial statements in accordance 
with the requirement of Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
Number 61.  
 

2. On December 2, 2014, Vasquez & Company, LLP was appointed by the City Council to 
perform the annual audits of the City for the FYs 2013-14, 2014-15, and 2015-16.   
 

3. On February 3, 2015, the Successor Agency adopted Resolution No. 15-01, approving an 
Asset Transfer Agreement between the EDC and the Successor Agency to effectuate the 
asset transfer ordered by the California State Controller’s Office (SCO). 
 
 

 

Item Number 

10B 

Page 63 of 237



4. On February 5, 2015, the Board of Directors of the EDC adopted Resolution No. EDC-15-
01, approving the Asset Transfer Agreement to transfer assets from the EDC and the 
Successor Agency to effectuate the asset transfer ordered by the SCO. 
 

5. On May 19, 2015, the Successor Agency adopted Resolution No. 15-20, approving an 
amendment to an Asset Transfer Agreement between the EDC and the Successor Agency 
to effectuate the asset transfer. 
 

6. On October 19, 2015, to comply with the SCO order, quitclaim deeds were recorded with 
the County of Los Angeles Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk transferring the affected real 
properties from the EDC to the Successor Agency.  

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The original proposal submitted by Vasquez for the audit of the City and approved by City 
Council on December 2, 2014, did not include pricing for an audit of the EDC Financial 
Statements for FYs 2014-15 and 2015-16. The EDC hired Vasquez to audit its financial 
statements through December 31, 2013.  Accordingly, the period to be included in the City’s 
financial statements for FY 2014-15 has not been contracted for audit.  
 
The auditing of the EDC transactions for inclusion in the City’s Financial Statement is 
considered a change in the scope of work. Vasquez has included pricing sheets in an 
engagement letter for an audit of the EDC for an eighteen month period ending June 30, 
2015. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The audit of the EDC, will be conducted concurrently with the City’s audit process that is 
scheduled to begin January 11, 2016. The final fieldwork for the audit will be concluded in 
February 2016 with a draft of the financial statements being presented to the City for review 
prior to February 28, 2016. It is anticipated that the report will be reviewed and finalized prior 
to the March 31, 2016 deadline. The proposal Vasquez submitted was for three fiscal years 
beginning with FY 2013-14 with two one-year options.  
 
 

  

Page 64 of 237



FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The total cost for the change in scope of work relating to audit procedures applied to the 
financial position and activities of the EDC and subsequent FYs 2014-15 and 2015-16 would be 
$19,300. 
 
The funding for the additional cost of the annual audit for FY 2014-15 would be funded as 
follows: 
 
City General Fund  $ - 0 -  
Successor Agency  $12,300 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
Proposed Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement  
 

Page 65 of 237



Page 66 of 237



Page 67 of 237



Page 68 of 237



Page 69 of 237



Page 70 of 237



Page 71 of 237



Page 72 of 237



Page 73 of 237



Page 74 of 237



Page 75 of 237



Page 76 of 237



Page 77 of 237



Page 78 of 237



Page 79 of 237



Page 80 of 237



Page 81 of 237



Page 82 of 237



Page 83 of 237



Page 84 of 237



Page 85 of 237



Page 86 of 237



Page 87 of 237



Page 88 of 237



Page 89 of 237



Page 90 of 237



Page 91 of 237



Page 92 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  December 14, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director  

Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Approving a Loan Agreement 
Between the City and the Successor Agency  

   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to: 

1. Adopt a proposed resolution approving a loan agreement between the City and the 
Successor Agency (Attachment A); and 

 
2. Authorize the City Manager to sign Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 16-17:8 in 

the amount of $10,000 (Attachment B) and any documents, as necessary, in order to 
implement the proposed resolution on behalf of the City. 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency to the Community Development Commission 

of the City of Cudahy began performing its functions under the Dissolution Law, Parts 1.8 
and 1.85 of the Health and Safety Code, as amended by Assembly Bill 1484 and other 
subsequent legislation (together, the “Dissolution Law”), to administer the enforceable 
obligations reported on a Recognized Obligations Payment Schedule (ROPS) and 
otherwise unwind the former Agency’s affairs, all subject to the review and approval by 
the Oversight Board. ROPS means the document setting forth the minimum payment 
amounts and due dates of payments required by enforceable obligations for each six-
month fiscal period. 

 

 

Item Number 

10C 

Page 93 of 237



2. On August 19, 2014, the Successor Agency signed a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) 
with Urban Futures for the preparation of a Long Range Property Management Plan 
(LRPMP). 

 
3. On February 17, 2015, the Successor Agency amended the PSA with Urban Futures for the 

preparation of a LRPMP. 
 

4. On November 12, 2015, the Successor Agency submitted a LRPMP to the California 
Department of Finance (DOF) for review and approval prior to January 1, 2016. 

 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
The Successor Agency estimates the amount of funds which are reasonably anticipated to be 
remitted to the Successor Agency from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for the 
former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency, for 
the period of time between July 1, 2016 and June 30, 2017 under ROPS 16–17A (together 
with the cash and other immediately available funds which are reasonably estimated to be 
available to the Successor Agency on or after July 1, 2016) shall not be sufficient to pay the 
enforceable obligations of the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy 
Redevelopment Agency to Urban Futures, which shall become due and payable during the 
period of time covered by ROPS 15–16B, unless this emergency loan is approved. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Once this loan is approved by the City Council, the Successor Agency and the Oversight Board, 
and is listed on ROPS 16–17, the loan then becomes a new enforceable obligation of the 
Successor Agency, subject to the separate approval by the California DOF.  
 
In order to be recovered by the City, this loan must be listed on the final form of ROPS 16-17. 
If the loan is not fully approved and formalized, the City is exposed to the risk that the monies 
described in the accompanying loan documents may not be repaid to the City.    
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Funds shall be made available to the Successor Agency from the City’s General Fund in the 
amount of $10,000. 
 

Page 94 of 237



ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Proposed Resolution to approve the Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 16-17:8 

B. Successor Agency Loan Agreement No. 16-17:8 

Page 95 of 237



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CUDAHY APPROVING A LOAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF CUDAHY AND THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
TO THE FORMER CUDAHY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
COMMISSION/CUDAHY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(SUCCESSOR AGENCY LOAN AGREEMENT NO. 16-17:8) 

 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy (the “City”) authorized the formation and 
operation of a community redevelopment agency within the territorial jurisdiction of the 
City pursuant to California state law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy 
Redevelopment Agency (“RDA”) undertook the redevelopment of certain areas of the 
City in reliance upon the provisions of state law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of California (the “State”) has ordered the former Cudahy 
Community Redevelopment Agency to be dissolved under the provisions of ABX1 26 
(Stats 2011-12, 1st Ex. Sess., Chapter 5), as amended by AB 1484 (Stats 2012, 
Chapter 26), and collectively the State legislation identified in this sentence is referred 
to herein as the “State Redevelopment Dissolution Law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Successor Agency to the former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency (“Successor Agency”) has initiated the 
implementation of the State Redevelopment Dissolution Law, which includes the 
retention of Urban Futures, Inc. (“Urban Futures”) to assist with the preparation of a 
Long-Range Property Management Plan for the Successor Agency, as memorialized in 
that agreement between the Successor Agency and Urban Futures dated August 19, 
2014, and subsequently amended by way of a First Amendment dated February 17, 
2015 (the 2014 agreement and 2015 amendment are collectively the “Amended Initial 
Agreement”); and 
 

WHEREAS, Urban Futures requires additional funds to provide the Successor 
Agency professional guidance for responding to questions that the Department of 
Finance and/or other interested parties have raised and/or may raise concerning the 
proposed Long Range Asset Management Plan that the Successor Agency submitted to 
Department of Finance on or about November 12, 2015 for the Department’s review 
and approval and also to provide the Successor Agency guidance concerning the 
implementation and administration of the Department of Finance approved Long Range 
Property Management Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, such funds are made available through the approval of the Loan 

Agreement No. 16-17:8  between the City of Cudahy and the Successor Agency, 

Page 96 of 237



attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A,” (the “Loan Agreement”) then a 
corresponding amendment to the Amended Initial Agreement shall be made; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has determined that the amount of funds 
remitted to the Successor Agency from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust, for the 
period of time corresponding with 15-16B, between January 1, 2016 and June 30, 2016, 
together with the cash and other immediately available funds on deposit in the 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund of the Successor Agency, is not sufficient 
to pay the enforceable obligations of the former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency to third parties, including Urban Futures, 
which shall become due and payable during the period of time covered by Cudahy 
ROPS 15-16B, unless this Loan is approved; and 
 

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Section 34173(h) provides authorization for 
the City to loan funds to the Successor Agency to pay for administrative costs, 
enforceable obligations, or project-related expenses, at the discretion of the City, and 
that such a loan shall be reflected on the recognized obligation payment schedule of the 
Successor Agency, which is subject to the approval of the Oversight Board for the 
Successor Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and the Successor Agency have both determined that it is 

necessary and appropriate to enter into the Loan Agreement, as herein provided below, 
in order that the City and the Successor Agency may comply with the State 
Redevelopment Dissolution.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY DOES 
HEREBY FIND, ORDER AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and 

incorporated herein by reference.   
 
SECTION 2. Approval of Loan Agreement.  The City Council hereby approves 

Loan Agreement No. 16-17:18 between the City of Cudahy and the Successor Agency 
to the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment 
Agency.  The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to cause Loan Agreement 
16-17:8 to be included on the recognized payment obligation schedule of the Successor 
Agency as shall be submitted to the State Department of Finance at the most feasible 
time after the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
SECTION 3. Execution of Loan Agreement.  The City Manager is hereby 

authorized and directed to take such other and further action consistent with this 
Resolution and sign any documents, as necessary, in order to implement this 
Resolution on behalf of the City.  

 

Page 97 of 237



SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption.  The City Clerk 
shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy at the regular meeting of this 14th day of December, 2015. 
    
 
   
        
 Cristian Markovich 
 Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________   __________________________ 
Laura Valdivia Isabel Birrueta  
Interim City Clerk Assistant City Attorney 
    
 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES  )  SS: 
CITY OF CUDAHY    ) 
 
 I, Laura Valdivia, Interim City Clerk of the City of Cudahy, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution No._____ was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy, signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk at a regular meeting of said 
Council held on the 14th day of December, 2015, and that said Resolution was adopted by 
the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 AYES:    
 NOES:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 ABSENT:  
 
 
       
 Laura Valdivia 
 Interim City Clerk 

Page 98 of 237



 
EXHIBIT A – LOAN AGREEMENT NO. 16-17:8 

Page 99 of 237



2015 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
 

-and- 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY AS 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
FORMER CUDAHY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION/ 

CUDAHY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY LOAN AGREEMENT 
No. 16-17:8 

 
(NOT TO EXCEED: $___________) 

 
THIS SUCCESSOR AGENCY LOAN AGREEMENT No. 16-17:8 (the “Loan 
Agreement”) is dated as of ________________, 2015 by and between the City of 
Cudahy, a municipal corporation (the “City”) and the City of Cudahy, as successor 
agency to the former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy 
Redevelopment Agency, a public body corporate and politic (the “Successor Agency”) 
and is entered into in light of the following facts: 
 

-RECITALS- 
 
1. The City of Cudahy (the “City”) authorized the formation and operation of a 

community redevelopment agency within the territorial jurisdiction of the City 
pursuant to California state law. 

 
2. The former Cudahy Community Development Commission/Cudahy 

Redevelopment Agency (“RDA”) undertook the redevelopment of certain areas of 
the City in reliance upon the provisions of state law. 

 
3. The State of California (the “State”) has ordered the former Cudahy Community 

Redevelopment Agency to be dissolved under the provisions of ABX1 26 (Stats 
2011-12, 1st Ex. Sess., Chapter 5), as amended by AB 1484 (Stats 2012, 
Chapter 26), and collectively the State legislation identified in this sentence is 
referred to herein as the “State Redevelopment Dissolution Law.” 

 
4. The Successor Agency has initiated the implementation of the State 

Redevelopment Dissolution Law, which includes the retention of Urban Futures, 
Inc. (“Urban Futures”) to assist with the preparation of a Long-Range Property 
Management Plan (“LRPMP”) for the Successor Agency, as memorialized in that 

Page 100 of 237



agreement between the Successor Agency and Urban Futures dated August 19, 
2014, and subsequently amended by way of a First Amendment dated February 
17, 2015 (the 2014 agreement and 2015 amendment are collectively the 
“Amended Initial Agreement”). 

 
5. Urban Futures requires additional funds in connection the Department of 

Finance’s review of the Long-Range Property Management Plan that the 
Successor Agency submitted to the Department of Finance for review and 
approval on or about November 12, 2015, and if such funds are made available 
through the approval of this Loan Agreement, a corresponding amendment to the 
Amended Initial Agreement shall be made.      

 
6. The Successor Agency has determined that the amount of funds remitted to the 

Successor Agency from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust, for the period of 
time corresponding with ROPS 15-16B between January 1, 2016 and June 30, 
2016, together with the cash and other immediately available funds on deposit in 
the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund of the Successor Agency, is not 
sufficient to pay the enforceable obligations of the former Cudahy Community 
Development Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment Agency to third parties, 
including Urban Futures, which shall become due and payable during the period 
of time covered by Cudahy ROPS 15-16B, unless this Loan is approved.  

 
7.  Health and Safety Code Section 34173(h) provides authorization for the City to 

loan funds to the Successor Agency to pay for administrative costs, enforceable 
obligations, or project-related expenses, at the discretion of the City, and that 
such a loan shall be reflected on the recognized obligation payment schedule of 
the Successor Agency, which is subject to the approval of the Oversight Board 
for the Successor Agency. 

 
8. The City and the Successor Agency have both determined that it is necessary 

and appropriate to enter into the Loan Agreement, as herein provided below, in 
order that the City and the Successor Agency may comply with the State 
Redevelopment Dissolution.  
 

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND 
AGREEMENTS HEREINAFTER SET FORTH, THE CITY AND SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  Recitals.  The City and Successor Agency represent and warrant 
to each other that the information set forth in the preceding recital paragraphs is true 
and correct and is hereby incorporated into this Loan Agreement by reference as if fully 
set forth.  The purpose of this Loan Agreement is to satisfy the provisions of Health and 
Safety Code Section 34173(h) and to evidence the enforceable obligation of the 
Successor Agency which arises in favor of the City, in order for the Successor Agency 

Page 101 of 237



to comply with its obligations under the State Redevelopment Dissolution Law and other 
applicable State and federal law. 

 
SECTION 2.  Loan.  The City hereby agrees to make available from the available 

funds of the City as a loan to the Successor Agency (herein, the Loan”) a sum not-to-
exceed _____________.  Subject to the approval of this Loan Agreement by the 
Oversight Board, the City shall make the proceeds of the Loan available to the 
Successor Agency upon receipt of a written Loan Draw Request, executed by the 
Executive Director of the Successor Agency which references Section 3 and Section 4. 
 

SECTION 3.  Use of the Loan.  The Successor Agency shall utilize the proceeds 
of the Loan as follows:  

 
for work performed and/or guidance to the Successor Agency and its staff to 
respond to questions that have been and/or may be raised by Department of 
Finance, Oversight Board, and/or Successor Agency members and/or other 
interested parties concerning and/or in connection with the LRPMP that the 
Successor Agency submitted to Department of Finance on or about November 
12, 2015 for the Department’s review and approval.   
 
The Extra Work may also include guidance and/or work performed concerning 
the implementation and administration of the Department of Finance approved 
LRPMP.  The total amount of for this Extra Work as provided in the Second 
Amendment to the Initial Agreement shall not exceed $________, subject to 
the approval and direction of the Oversight Board.  
 
 

 SECTION 4.  Source of Repayment of the Loan. . The Loan shall be repaid by 
the Successor Agency from revenues available to the Successor Agency. 
 
 SECTION 5.  Placement of Loan Obligation on the Successor Agency’s 
ROPS 16-17 (July 2016– June 2017).  Provided that this Loan Agreement is approved, 
the Successor Agency shall include this Loan Agreement as a listed enforceable 
obligation on the ROPS 16-17 as shall be considered by the Successor Agency.  The 
amount of that listed obligation shall be the not-to-exceed Loan Amount as set forth in 
Section 2.  This Loan Agreement shall be included on each successive recognized 
obligation payment schedule for the Successor Agency for the former Cudahy 
Community Redevelopment Agency, until the City is repaid the principal balance of the 
Loan Amount as actually drawn by the Successor Agency as evidenced by the written 
Loan Draw Requests as set forth in Section 2.  The City Manager of the City shall 
establish a loan repayment ledger for the Loan and shall cause the outstanding unpaid 
principal balance of the Loan to the Successor Agency, as hereby approved, to be 
identified in the accounting records of the City, as a financial asset of the City which is 

Page 102 of 237



payable to the City by the Successor Agency, in accordance with the terms set forth 
herein. 
 
 SECTION 6.  Term.  This Loan Agreement shall be in full force and effect from 
the date hereof until such time as the unpaid principal balance of the Loan has been 
repaid in full to the City. 
 
 SECTION 7.  Entire Agreement.  This Loan Agreement constitutes the entire 
agreement by and between the City and the Successor Agency with respect to the 
subject matter of this Loan Agreement, and may be amended only in writing. 
 
 SECTION 8.  Notice of Default and Remedies.  In the event of a default, the 
party who alleges a default shall give the other party thirty (30) days written notice of 
such default, with a copy of such notice of default to the Oversight Board and to the 
State Department of Finance.  In the event that the party who is alleged to be in default 
does not promptly initiate a cure of the alleged default, and the applicable party hereto 
shall be entitled to pursue any and all remedies available under California law for 
purposes of enforcing the terms and conditions of this Loan Agreement. 
 
 APPROVED AND EXECUTED by signature of the authorized representatives of 
the City and the Successor Agency as of December 14, 2015. 
 
 

[SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 103 of 237



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: _____________________________ 
        Interim City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
        City Attorney 
 

CITY: 
 
City of Cudahy, a municipal corporation 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
       Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: _____________________________ 
        Interim Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
       City Attorney 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY: 
 
City of Cudahy As Successor Agency to the 
former Cudahy Community Development 
Commission/Cudahy Redevelopment 
Agency, a public body corporate and politic 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
        Jose E. Pulido, Executive Director 
 
 

 

Page 104 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  December 14, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director 

Subject: Consideration to Approve the City Demands and Payroll Including Cash and 
Investment Report for the Month of October 2015 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
The City Council is requested to approve the Demands and Payroll in the amount of 
$1,186,494.84 including Cash and Investment Report by Fund for the month of October 2015.   
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On October 13, 1993, Ordinance 476 was adopted and codified as Cudahy Municipal Code 

Section 3.04.080 indicating, "Except as otherwise provided, no warrant shall be drawn or 
evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time sufficient money in the 
treasury legally applicable to the payment of the same."  

 
2. On October 2015, the following demands and payroll have been audited by the Finance 

Department: 
 
Demands $    915,247.44 (Attachment A) 
Payroll Warrants $    124,379.60 (Attachment B) 
  $      79,955.14 (Attachment B) 
  $      66,912.66 (Attachment B)  
        
Total: $ 1,186,494.84      
 
 
 
 

 

Item Number 

10D 

Page 105 of 237



 
ANALYSIS  
 
The Check Register Report (Attachment A), Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes and 
insurance premiums (Attachment B), Cash and Investment Report by Fund October 2015 
(Attachment C) indicate that the cash and investment balance was sufficient for 
disbursements for the month of October 2015, and (Attachment D) a summary of cash 
received and disbursed by month during Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15. 
 
Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.070 indicates, "...Budgeted demands paid by warrant 
prior to audit by the council shall be presented to the council for ratification and approval..." 
 
 
CONCULSION 
 
The Finance Director certifies to the accuracy and availability of funds for payment.  A 
Demand/Warrant Register has been submitted to the City Council for approval in accordance 
with Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.070.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The Cash and Investment Report by Fund indicates how the total disbursements of 
$1,186,494.84 were distributed between the funds of the City. 
 
 
 ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Check Register Report 
B. Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes and insurance premiums  
C. Cash and Investment Report by Fund October 2015 
D. Summary of Cash Receipt / Disbursement by Month FY 2015 
 
 

 
 

Page 106 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 1Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

10/07/2015 4550 235- PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC. 39090

CYLINDER RENTALPrinted

 42.43

 0.00

 42.43

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27664 201-4425-6150.000  42.43 42.43  0.00

Check Amount  42.43

10/07/2015 0001 AAA BURGLAR ALARM CO, 39091

QUARTERLY ALARM MONITORPrinted

 1,471.00

 0.00

 1,471.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27637 001-4020-6720.000  1,471.00 1,471.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,471.00

10/07/2015 10128 ALCALA MIKE ALONSO 39092

MUSIC -SENIORS HAWAIIAN LUAUPrinted

 150.00

 0.00

 150.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27659 001-4350-6580.000  150.00 150.00  0.00

Check Amount  150.00

10/07/2015 1778 ALL CITY MANAGEMENT 39093

CROSSING GUARD AUG 30 -SEPT 12Printed

 3,514.92

 0.00

 3,514.92

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27634 001-4520-6730.000  1,860.84 1,860.84  0.00

 27661 001-4520-6730.000  1,654.08 1,654.08  0.00

Check Amount  3,514.92

10/07/2015 7995 AMERICAN CITY PEST CONTROL 39094

PEST CONTROL SERVICE SEPTEMBERPrinted

 484.00

 0.00

 484.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27642 001-4020-6720.000  101.00 101.00  0.00

 27643 001-4020-6720.000  101.00 101.00  0.00

 27644 001-4020-6720.000  117.00 117.00  0.00

 27645 001-4020-6720.000  101.00 101.00  0.00

 27646 001-4020-6720.000  64.00 64.00  0.00

Check Amount  484.00

10/07/2015 10205 APPLE ONE EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 39095

EMPLOYMENT SERVICEPrinted

 5,128.84

 0.00

 5,128.84

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27680 001-4020-6720.000  5,128.84 5,128.84  0.00

Check Amount  5,128.84

10/07/2015 0057-1 AT & T INTERNET SERVICES 39096

LUGO PARK INTERNET #138690461Printed

 155.63

 0.00

 155.63

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27655 001-4020-6390.000  101.63 101.63  0.00

 27656 001-4020-6390.000  54.00 54.00  0.00

Check Amount  155.63

10/07/2015 9966 AT & T LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 39097

LONG DISTANCE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 120.58

 0.00

 120.58

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

Page 107 of 237

jbalandran
Typewritten Text

jbalandran
Typewritten Text

jbalandran
Text Box
Attachment A

jbalandran
Pencil



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 2Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 27674 001-4020-6390.000  120.58 120.58  0.00

Check Amount  120.58

10/07/2015 8021 AT & T MOBILITY 39098

CELLULAR SERVICE AUG 7 - SEPT6Printed

 574.94

 0.00

 574.94

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27628 001-4020-6390.000  502.42 502.42  0.00

 27628 201-4425-6390.000  72.52 72.52  0.00

Check Amount  574.94

10/07/2015 0057-2 AT & T PHONE SERVICE 39099

PHONE SERVICE AUG 8 - SEPT 7Printed

 600.07

 0.00

 600.07

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27684 001-4020-6390.000  600.07 600.07  0.00

Check Amount  600.07

10/07/2015 5573 BEN'S AIRLESS 39100

PUMP ARROW CLEAN PAINT LINESPrinted

 6,161.55

 0.00

 6,161.55

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27668 201-4425-6150.000  6,104.00 6,104.00  0.00

 27669 201-4425-6150.000  57.55 57.55  0.00

Check Amount  6,161.55

10/07/2015 4546 CENTRAL BASIN MUNICIPAL WATER 39101

RECYCLED WAER JULY 2015Printed

 325.38

 0.00

 325.38

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27683 001-4020-6395.000  325.38 325.38  0.00

Check Amount  325.38

10/07/2015 6045 CONTRERAS GARDEN SUPPLY 39102

PURCHASED OF HONDA MOWERPrinted

 1,379.00

 0.00

 1,379.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27626 001-4410-6770.000  279.00 279.00  0.00

 27658 001-4410-6140.000  1,100.00 1,100.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,379.00

10/07/2015 9751 CRYSTAL AUDIO VISUAL SERV. 39103

HALLOWEEN MOVIE NIGHT OCT 23rdPrinted

 900.00

 0.00

 900.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27657 001-4350-6585.000  900.00 900.00  0.00

Check Amount  900.00

10/07/2015 5552 CUDAHY AUTO CENTER 39104

FIX FLAT TIRE VEHICLE #17Printed

 8.00

 0.00

 8.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27627 001-4410-6394.000  8.00 8.00  0.00

Check Amount  8.00

10/07/2015 2167 DAILY BREEZE PRESS TELEGRAM 39105

CLASSIFIED ADVERTISINGPrinted

 1,528.09

 0.00

 1,528.09

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27629 001-4008-6310.000  246.53 246.53  0.00

Page 108 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 3Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 27630 001-4008-6310.000  271.15 271.15  0.00

 27631 001-4008-6310.000  418.87 418.87  0.00

 27632 001-4008-6310.000  295.77 295.77  0.00

 27633 001-4008-6310.000  295.77 295.77  0.00

Check Amount  1,528.09

10/07/2015 10334 DEMETRIOU DEL GUERCIO SPRINGER 39106

ATTORNEY FEES CUDAHY EDCPrinted

 9,042.50

 0.00

 9,042.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27682 610-4930-6755.000  9,042.50 9,042.50  0.00

Check Amount  9,042.50

10/07/2015 8017 DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION 39107

QUARTERLY STRONG MOTIONPrinted

 145.79

 0.00

 145.79

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27685 001-4212-6720.000  145.79 145.79  0.00

Check Amount  145.79

10/07/2015 6087 FIRST AMERICAN DATA TREE 39108

SERVICE RENDERED SEPTEMBERPrinted

 99.00

 0.00

 99.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27670 001-4215-6080.000  99.00 99.00  0.00

Check Amount  99.00

10/07/2015 10336 GASTON GUTIERREZ 39109

TINT WINDOWS & DOORS ATPrinted

 1,065.00

 0.00

 1,065.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27638 001-4020-6370.000  1,065.00 1,065.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,065.00

10/07/2015 0126-1 GOLDEN STATE WATER COMPANY 39110

WATER SERVICE AUG 24 - SEPT 23Printed

 2,836.11

 0.00

 2,836.11

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27671 001-4020-6395.000  92.28 92.28  0.00

 27672 001-4020-6395.000  2,743.83 2,743.83  0.00

Check Amount  2,836.11

10/07/2015 10053 HAULAWAY STORAGE CONTAINERS 39111

21FT STORAGE CONTAINERPrinted

 74.20

 0.00

 74.20

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27665 001-4020-6970.000  74.20 74.20  0.00

Check Amount  74.20

10/07/2015 9723 IT SYSTEMHOUSE, INC. 39112

IT OUTSOURCING SERV SEPTEMBERPrinted

 3,200.00

 0.00

 3,200.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27666 001-4020-6720.000  3,200.00 3,200.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,200.00

10/07/2015 4553 J. V. PRINTING 39113

NOTICE BOOKS BUILDIND/SAFETYPrinted

 212.55

 0.00

 212.55

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount
Page 109 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 4Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 27650 001-4020-6080.000  212.55 212.55  0.00

Check Amount  212.55

10/07/2015 9668 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS 39114

KONICA MINOLTA COPIERPrinted

 236.38

 0.00

 236.38

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27663 001-4020-6014.000  236.38 236.38  0.00

Check Amount  236.38

10/07/2015 0197 LA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 39115

LAW ENFORCEMENT JULY 2015Printed

 307,305.63

 0.00

 307,305.63

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27681 001-4501-6763.000  307,305.63 307,305.63  0.00

Check Amount  307,305.63

10/07/2015 9994 LA PRINCESA BAKERY & CAFE 39116

SENIOR'S EVENT -BIRTHDAY SEPT.Printed

 50.00

 0.00

 50.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27660 001-4350-6580.000  50.00 50.00  0.00

Check Amount  50.00

10/07/2015 10194 MAGANA GARCIA CECILIA 39117

ZUMBA INSTRUCTORPrinted

 247.50

 0.00

 247.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27678 001-4350-6210.000  247.50 247.50  0.00

Check Amount  247.50

10/07/2015 10081 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST 39118

POSTAGEPrinted

 841.23

 0.00

 841.23

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27686 001-4020-6385.000  841.23 841.23  0.00

Check Amount  841.23

10/07/2015 9737 REGIONAL TAP SERVICE CENTER 39119

REGULAR BUS PASS JULY 2015Printed

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27667 251-4760-6550.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/07/2015 0069-2 SIEMENS INDUSTRY, INC. 39120

TRAFFIC SIGNAL RESPONSES AUGUSPrinted

 2,146.30

 0.00

 2,146.30

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27648 201-4420-6771.000  674.61 674.61  0.00

 27649 201-4420-6771.000  240.20 240.20  0.00

 27653 350-4430-6775.000  783.25 783.25  0.00

 27654 350-4430-6775.000  448.24 448.24  0.00

Check Amount  2,146.30

10/07/2015 0172 SMART & FINAL FOOD SERVICE 39121

FOOD DISTRIBUTION SEPTEMBERPrinted

 1,836.93

 0.00

 1,836.93

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27623 510-4642-6145.000  1,490.49 1,490.49  0.00

Page 110 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 5Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 27624 001-4020-6515.000  18.87 18.87  0.00

 27624 001-4020-6080.000  15.57 15.57  0.00

 27625 510-4642-6145.000  312.00 312.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,836.93

10/07/2015 0070 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON 39122

ELECTRICTIY BILLSPrinted

 27,311.46

 0.00

 27,311.46

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27651 201-4420-6318.000  2,118.75 2,118.75  0.00

 27651 001-4020-6318.000  25,108.50 25,108.50  0.00

 27652 350-4430-6318.000  68.80 68.80  0.00

 27652 201-4420-6318.000  15.41 15.41  0.00

Check Amount  27,311.46

10/07/2015 9626 THE BANCORP BANK 39123

FORD FUSION HYBRID 2 VEHPrinted

 1,154.24

 0.00

 1,154.24

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27636 257-4780-6990.000  1,154.24 1,154.24  0.00

Check Amount  1,154.24

10/07/2015 0071 THE GAS COMPANY 39124

NATURAL GAS - 5220 SANTA STRPrinted

 170.72

 0.00

 170.72

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27675 001-4020-6380.000  74.69 74.69  0.00

 27676 001-4020-6380.000  61.00 61.00  0.00

 27677 001-4020-6380.000  35.03 35.03  0.00

Check Amount  170.72

10/07/2015 10320 THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY 39125

STRATEGIC GROWTH COUNCILPrinted

 3,513.68

 0.00

 3,513.68

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27647 235-4215-6720.000  3,513.68 3,513.68  0.00

Check Amount  3,513.68

10/07/2015 0079 TRACT 180 WATER COMPANY 39126

WATER SERVICE JUL - AUG 2015Printed

 8,264.25

 0.00

 8,264.25

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27679 201-4425-6395.000  74.88 74.88  0.00

 27679 001-4020-6395.000  8,121.85 8,121.85  0.00

 27679 001-4020-6395.000  67.52 67.52  0.00

Check Amount  8,264.25

10/07/2015 0078 TRACT 349 MUTUAL WATER CO 39127

WATER SERVICE JUN 15 - AUG 15Printed

 409.80

 0.00

 409.80

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27673 001-4020-6395.000  144.53 144.53  0.00

 27673 201-4425-6395.000  265.27 265.27  0.00

Check Amount  409.80

10/07/2015 8292 URBAN FUTURES, INC. 39128

LONG RANGE PROPERTY MANAGEMENTPrinted

 5,265.00

 0.00

 5,265.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27640 610-4930-6720.000  5,062.50 5,062.50  0.00
Page 111 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 6Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

 27641 610-4930-6720.000  202.50 202.50  0.00

Check Amount  5,265.00

10/07/2015 8191 VAUDRY ELECTRIC 39129

INSTALL OUTLETS & BREAKERSPrinted

 775.00

 0.00

 775.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27635 001-4020-6370.000  775.00 775.00  0.00

Check Amount  775.00

10/07/2015 10335 VOLTEX SAFETY PRODUCTS 39130

ARROW BOARD FOR CITY VEHICLEPrinted

 4,359.97

 0.00

 4,359.97

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27639 201-4425-6150.000  4,359.97 4,359.97  0.00

Check Amount  4,359.97

10/07/2015 0643 ZUMAR INDUSTRIES. INC. 39131

STRAPPING FOR STREET SIGNSPrinted

 42.68

 0.00

 42.68

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27662 201-4425-6387.000  42.68 42.68  0.00

Check Amount  42.68

10/13/2015 10318 CORONA RAYMUNDO 39132

P9OX INSTRUCTOR 8/25-10/1/15Printed

 126.00

 0.00

 126.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27689 001-4350-6210.000  126.00 126.00  0.00

Check Amount  126.00

10/13/2015 2724 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 39133

HARDWARE & SUPPLIESPrinted

 2,208.12

 0.00

 2,208.12

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27691 001-4020-6080.000  5.91 5.91  0.00

 27691 001-4410-6389.000  790.01 790.01  0.00

 27691 201-4425-6150.000  119.32 119.32  0.00

 27691 001-4020-6370.000  323.38 323.38  0.00

 27691 001-4410-6140.000  969.50 969.50  0.00

Check Amount  2,208.12

10/13/2015 10106 HR DYNAMICS & PERFORMANCE MGNT 39134

/HR CONSULTING 9/27/15-10/9/15Printed

 7,399.95

 0.00

 7,399.95

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27687 001-4930-6391.000  340.00 340.00  0.00

 27687 001-4011-6720.000  3,995.00 3,995.00  0.00

 27688 001-4015-6720.000  3,064.95 3,064.95  0.00

Check Amount  7,399.95

10/13/2015 0197 LA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 39135

LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICESPrinted

 15,187.23

 0.00

 15,187.23

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27690 270-4501-6763.000  15,187.23 15,187.23  0.00

Check Amount  15,187.23

Page 112 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 7Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

10/21/2015 0057-1 AT & T INTERNET SERVICES 39136

LUGO PARK INTERNET #138690461Printed

 105.00

 0.00

 105.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27719 001-4020-6390.000  51.00 51.00  0.00

 27720 001-4020-6390.000  54.00 54.00  0.00

Check Amount  105.00

10/21/2015 9966 AT & T LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 39137

LONG DISTANCE PHONE SERVICEPrinted

 92.01

 0.00

 92.01

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27717 001-4020-6390.000  92.01 92.01  0.00

Check Amount  92.01

10/21/2015 0057-2 AT & T PHONE SERVICE 39138

PHONE SERVICE AUG - SEPTPrinted

 2,833.28

 0.00

 2,833.28

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27721 001-4020-6390.000  2,833.28 2,833.28  0.00

Check Amount  2,833.28

10/21/2015 8061 CELEDON'S EXER. EQUIP. SERV. 39139

MAINTENANCE FITNESS EQUIPMENTPrinted

 620.60

 0.00

 620.60

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27692 001-4350-6210.000  620.60 620.60  0.00

Check Amount  620.60

10/21/2015 0136 CITY OF SOUTH GATE 39140

SIGNAL MAINTENANCE OCTOBER2015Printed

 75.00

 0.00

 75.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27698 201-4420-6771.000  75.00 75.00  0.00

Check Amount  75.00

10/21/2015 10005 DAPEER, ROSENBLIT & LITVAK 39141

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SEPTEMBEPrinted

 6,091.80

 0.00

 6,091.80

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27705 510-4230-6755.000  6,091.80 6,091.80  0.00

Check Amount  6,091.80

10/21/2015 2304 DAVE'S TROPHIES 39142

SOCCER TROPHYPrinted

 683.50

 0.00

 683.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27703 001-4350-6250.000  683.50 683.50  0.00

Check Amount  683.50

10/21/2015 10334 DEMETRIOU DEL GUERCIO SPRINGER 39143

ATTORNEY FEES CUDAHY EDCPrinted

 3,315.00

 0.00

 3,315.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27726 610-4930-6755.000  3,315.00 3,315.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,315.00

10/21/2015 9734 EARTH CONSULTANTS 39144

CUDAHY DISASTER MITIGATION PLAPrinted

 246.15

 0.00

 246.15

Page 113 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 8Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27706 001-4020-6742.000  246.15 246.15  0.00

Check Amount  246.15

10/21/2015 8382 IGLESIAS RICHARD 39145

PER DIEM SAN JOSE SEMINARPrinted

 82.50

 0.00

 82.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27694 001-4018-6392.000  82.50 82.50  0.00

Check Amount  82.50

10/21/2015 2378 ITL, INC. 39146

FUELPrinted

 1,970.01

 0.00

 1,970.01

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27713 001-4530-6040.000  156.36 156.36  0.00

 27713 201-4425-6040.000  265.98 265.98  0.00

 27713 001-4410-6040.000  122.57 122.57  0.00

 27714 001-4530-6040.000  109.30 109.30  0.00

 27714 201-4425-6040.000  81.66 81.66  0.00

 27714 001-4410-6040.000  149.49 149.49  0.00

 27715 001-4530-6040.000  169.77 169.77  0.00

 27715 201-4425-6040.000  42.00 42.00  0.00

 27715 001-4410-6040.000  251.96 251.96  0.00

 27716 001-4215-6720.000  23.59 23.59  0.00

 27716 001-4530-6040.000  140.62 140.62  0.00

 27716 201-4425-6040.000  230.71 230.71  0.00

 27716 001-4410-6040.000  226.00 226.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,970.01

10/21/2015 4553 J. V. PRINTING 39147

BUSINESS LICENSE DECALPrinted

 114.45

 0.00

 114.45

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27701 001-4020-6080.000  114.45 114.45  0.00

Check Amount  114.45

10/21/2015 9425 JK CONSTRUCTION 39148

8305 ATLANTIC AVE  #9 -WALSHPrinted

 387.00

 0.00

 387.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27695 510-4620-6767.000  387.00 387.00  0.00

Check Amount  387.00

10/21/2015 10108 MARKOVICH CRISTIAN 39149

PER DIEM WASHINGTON CONFERENCEPrinted

 139.50

 0.00

 139.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27693 001-4001-6391.000  139.50 139.50  0.00

Check Amount  139.50

10/21/2015 1338-1 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION 39150

TAP AUGUST 2015Printed

 4,987.50

 0.00

 4,987.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27697 251-4760-6550.000  4,987.50 4,987.50  0.00

Check Amount  4,987.50

Page 114 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 9Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

10/21/2015 10337 MIG 39151

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AUGUSTPrinted

 1,135.27

 0.00

 1,135.27

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27727 001-4215-6720.000  1,135.27 1,135.27  0.00

Check Amount  1,135.27

10/21/2015 10191 MORENO DANNY 39152

BALLON ARTIST HALLOWEEN EVENTPrinted

 300.00

 0.00

 300.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27723 001-4350-6585.000  300.00 300.00  0.00

Check Amount  300.00

10/21/2015 10081 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST 39153

POSTAGEPrinted

 445.19

 0.00

 445.19

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27722 001-4020-6385.000  445.19 445.19  0.00

Check Amount  445.19

10/21/2015 9737 REGIONAL TAP SERVICE CENTER 39154

REGULAR BUS PASS AUGUST 2015Printed

 115.00

 0.00

 115.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27696 251-4760-6550.000  115.00 115.00  0.00

Check Amount  115.00

10/21/2015 2802 SAM'S CLUB 39155

SNACKS FOR CYF & CITYPrinted

 257.06

 0.00

 257.06

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27709 001-4020-6080.000  123.94 123.94  0.00

 27709 001-4350-6580.000  133.12 133.12  0.00

Check Amount  257.06

10/21/2015 10332 SEQUEL CONTRACTORS, INC. 39156

CITYWIDE STREET IMPROVEMENTPrinted

 7,410.00

 0.00

 7,410.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27704 240-7080-6725.000  7,410.00 7,410.00  0.00

Check Amount  7,410.00

10/21/2015 0070 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON 39157

ELECTRICITY BILLSPrinted

 11,569.95

 0.00

 11,569.95

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27718 350-4430-6318.000  6,585.68 6,585.68  0.00

 27718 201-4420-6318.000  269.37 269.37  0.00

 27718 001-4020-6318.000  4,714.90 4,714.90  0.00

Check Amount  11,569.95

10/21/2015 10004 TALAMANTES  ROBERT 39158

DJ SERVICE -  HALLOWEEN EVENTPrinted

 700.00

 0.00

 700.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27724 001-4350-6585.000  350.00 350.00  0.00

 27725 001-4350-6585.000  350.00 350.00  0.00

Check Amount  700.00
Page 115 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 10Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

10/21/2015 0071 THE GAS COMPANY 39159

NATURAL GAS - 5220 SANTA STRPrinted

 131.84

 0.00

 131.84

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27710 001-4020-6380.000  38.57 38.57  0.00

 27711 001-4020-6380.000  61.38 61.38  0.00

 27712 001-4020-6380.000  31.89 31.89  0.00

Check Amount  131.84

10/21/2015 10320 THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY 39160

STRATEGIC GROWTH COUNCILPrinted

 4,373.72

 0.00

 4,373.72

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27708 235-4215-6720.000  4,373.72 4,373.72  0.00

Check Amount  4,373.72

10/21/2015 9991 TRANSTECH 39161

HIGHWAY SAFETY IMPROVEMENTPrinted

 1,485.00

 0.00

 1,485.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27707 235-7087-6725.000  1,485.00 1,485.00  0.00

Check Amount  1,485.00

10/21/2015 2859 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT-SC 39162

DIG ALERT TICKETSPrinted

 46.50

 0.00

 46.50

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27699 201-4425-6735.000  46.50 46.50  0.00

Check Amount  46.50

10/21/2015 9667 UNITED LIFTTRUCKS 39163

REPAIR FORKLIFTPrinted

 618.80

 0.00

 618.80

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27702 001-4410-6770.000  618.80 618.80  0.00

Check Amount  618.80

10/21/2015 5631 WELLS LOCK & KEY 39164

RE-KEYED SHERIFF'S OFFICEPrinted

 93.00

 0.00

 93.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27700 001-4020-6370.000  93.00 93.00  0.00

Check Amount  93.00

10/28/2015 10339 AGUILAR SANDRA 39165

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27753 001-0000-4990.000  100.00 100.00  0.00

Check Amount  100.00

10/28/2015 10346 ANGUIANO SONIA 39166

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27746 001-0000-4990.000  100.00 100.00  0.00

Check Amount  100.00

Page 116 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 11Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

10/28/2015 10357 ARTEAGA LILIA 39167

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27732 001-0000-4990.000  100.00 100.00  0.00

Check Amount  100.00

10/28/2015 10354 AYALA LILIANA 39168

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27729 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 7019 BUSINESS CARD 39169

CREDIT CARD SEPTEMBER 2015  RIPrinted

 3,012.24

 0.00

 3,012.24

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27762 001-4011-6312.000  235.00 235.00  0.00

 27762 001-4151-6080.000  222.09 222.09  0.00

 27762 001-4018-6080.000  222.09 222.09  0.00

 27762 001-4350-6080.000  5.97 5.97  0.00

 27762 001-4011-6080.000  12.98 12.98  0.00

 27762 001-4020-6515.000  114.36 114.36  0.00

 27762 001-4215-6386.000  485.00 485.00  0.00

 27762 001-4020-6910.000  375.00 375.00  0.00

 27762 001-4020-6375.000  126.00 126.00  0.00

 27762 001-4216-6080.000  31.99 31.99  0.00

 27762 001-4008-6310.000  104.01 104.01  0.00

 27762 001-4151-6392.000  385.00 385.00  0.00

 27762 001-4020-6080.000 -6.45-6.45  0.00

 27762 001-4001-6391.000  699.20 699.20  0.00

Check Amount  3,012.24

10/28/2015 4546 CENTRAL BASIN MUNICIPAL WATER 39170

RECYCLED WATER AUGUST 2015Printed

 373.87

 0.00

 373.87

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27764 001-4020-6395.000  373.87 373.87  0.00

Check Amount  373.87

10/28/2015 1206 COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES IND WAST 39171

SEWER SYSTEM - AUDITPrinted

 6,054.25

 0.00

 6,054.25

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27766 001-4216-6720.000  3,098.57 3,098.57  0.00

 27767 001-4216-6720.000  2,955.68 2,955.68  0.00

Check Amount  6,054.25

10/28/2015 10360 FIERRO LILIANA 39172

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27735 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 10364 FIGUEROA OMAR 39173

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Page 117 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 12Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27739 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 10362 FLORES LUZ MARIA 39174

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27737 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 10356 GALLARDO MILITZA 39175

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27731 001-0000-4990.000  100.00 100.00  0.00

Check Amount  100.00

10/28/2015 10350 GOMEZ OLGA 39176

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27742 001-0000-4990.000  100.00 100.00  0.00

Check Amount  100.00

10/28/2015 10106 HR DYNAMICS & PERFORMANCE MGNT 39177

CONSULTING OCT 11 - OCT  24Printed

 3,485.00

 0.00

 3,485.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27778 001-4011-6720.000  2,975.00 2,975.00  0.00

 27778 001-4930-6391.000  510.00 510.00  0.00

Check Amount  3,485.00

10/28/2015 0197 LA COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 39178

LAW ENFORCEMENT AUGUST 2015Printed

 307,305.63

 0.00

 307,305.63

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27755 001-4501-6763.000  307,305.63 307,305.63  0.00

Check Amount  307,305.63

10/28/2015 10353 LOPEZ MARIA LUISA 39179

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27728 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 10340 MADRIGAL LILY 39180

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 50.00

 0.00

 50.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27752 001-0000-4990.000  50.00 50.00  0.00

Check Amount  50.00

10/28/2015 10343 MAYORGA EDITH 39181

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27749 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Page 118 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 13Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 5715 MAZARIEGOS RAUL 39182

CACEO SEMINAR - TRAVEL EXPENSEPrinted

 63.81

 0.00

 63.81

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27765 510-4230-6392.000  63.81 63.81  0.00

Check Amount  63.81

10/28/2015 10338 MEDINA JULIO 39183

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27754 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 10345 MEZA ARELIA 39184

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27747 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 10342 MIRANDA MARIA 39185

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27750 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 1978 OFFICE DEPOT BUSINESS 39186

OFFICE SUPPLIESPrinted

 949.44

 0.00

 949.44

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27772 001-4020-6014.000  58.06 58.06  0.00

 27773 001-4020-6080.000  16.06 16.06  0.00

 27774 001-4020-6080.000  27.78 27.78  0.00

 27775 001-4020-6080.000  18.29 18.29  0.00

 27776 001-4020-6014.000  134.72 134.72  0.00

 27777 510-4230-6080.000  694.53 694.53  0.00

Check Amount  949.44

10/28/2015 10201 OLIVAREZ MADRUGA, LLP 39187

LEGAL SERVICES JULY 2015Printed

 41,812.63

 0.00

 41,812.63

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27757 001-4005-6720.000  19,678.25 19,678.25  0.00

 27757 001-4005-6755.000  292.15 292.15  0.00

 27757 001-4930-6391.000  321.75 321.75  0.00

 27758 001-4005-6720.000  5,361.29 5,361.29  0.00

 27758 001-4930-6391.000  940.50 940.50  0.00

 27758 001-4930-6755.000  2,339.61 2,339.61  0.00

 27763 610-4930-6755.000  12,879.08 12,879.08  0.00

Check Amount  41,812.63

10/28/2015 5571 PARAGON PARTNERS 39188

RELOCATION PLAN/EXPANSION PARKPrinted

 9,117.90

 0.00

 9,117.90

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27756 280-7093-6389.000  9,117.90 9,117.90  0.00
Page 119 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 14Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

Check Amount  9,117.90

10/28/2015 10349 PEREZ OLIVIA 39189

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27743 001-0000-4990.000  100.00 100.00  0.00

Check Amount  100.00

10/28/2015 0095 PETTY CASH 39190

PETTY CASH REIMBURESEMENTPrinted

 421.99

 0.00

 421.99

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27760 001-4350-6585.000  17.63 17.63  0.00

 27760 300-4620-6760.000  16.00 16.00  0.00

 27760 001-4350-6580.000  27.24 27.24  0.00

 27760 001-4410-6392.000  10.00 10.00  0.00

 27760 001-4350-6080.000  4.67 4.67  0.00

 27760 001-4410-6140.000  25.00 25.00  0.00

 27760 001-4410-6140.000  65.98 65.98  0.00

 27760 001-4410-6140.000  3.29 3.29  0.00

 27760 001-4350-6580.000  20.95 20.95  0.00

 27760 201-4425-6150.000  94.80 94.80  0.00

 27760 001-4410-6080.000  17.43 17.43  0.00

 27760 001-4410-6040.000  40.00 40.00  0.00

 27760 001-4410-6140.000  8.71 8.71  0.00

 27760 001-4410-6140.000  5.45 5.45  0.00

 27760 001-4410-6140.000  35.33 35.33  0.00

 27760 001-4410-6140.000  16.33 16.33  0.00

 27760 001-4020-6370.000  13.18 13.18  0.00

Check Amount  421.99

10/28/2015 10361 PRIETO FALISHA 39191

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27736 001-0000-4990.000  100.00 100.00  0.00

Check Amount  100.00

10/28/2015 10359 RIVERA MARIA L. 39192

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27734 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 10341 RODRIGUEZ JOHANA 39193

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27751 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 10358 ROJAS ANA 39194

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27733 001-0000-4990.000  100.00 100.00  0.00

Check Amount  100.00

Page 120 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 15Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

10/28/2015 10363 SAUCEDO ROTH 39195

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27738 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 0069-2 SIEMENS INDUSTRY, INC. 39196

TRAFFIC SIGNAL CALLS SEPTEMBERPrinted

 4,270.74

 0.00

 4,270.74

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27768 350-4430-6775.000  783.25 783.25  0.00

 27769 350-4430-6775.000  1,468.27 1,468.27  0.00

 27770 201-4420-6771.000  674.61 674.61  0.00

 27771 201-4420-6771.000  1,344.61 1,344.61  0.00

Check Amount  4,270.74

10/28/2015 10344 SOLIS SILVIA 39197

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27748 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 0093-1 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATIO 39198

MEMBERSHIP DUES 2015-2016Printed

 2,346.00

 0.00

 2,346.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27761 001-4001-6312.000  2,346.00 2,346.00  0.00

Check Amount  2,346.00

10/28/2015 10355 URIBE JANETTE 39199

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 100.00

 0.00

 100.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27730 001-0000-4990.000  100.00 100.00  0.00

Check Amount  100.00

10/28/2015 10351 VELEZ CANDY 39200

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27741 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 10348 VENEGAS ILIANNA 39201

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27744 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 10347 VILLALPALDO JUAN 39202

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27745 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

Page 121 of 237



City of Cudahy

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck 

Status

Amount

BANK: 

Vendor# Vendor Name

Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK 16Page:

 2:14 pmTime:

11/24/2015Date:

Number Void/Stop Date

Gross

Discount

10/28/2015 10352 YHUIT LESLIE 39203

YOUTH BASEBALL REFUNDPrinted

 85.00

 0.00

 85.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27740 001-0000-4990.000  85.00 85.00  0.00

Check Amount  85.00

10/28/2015 39204

Void10/28/2015

 0.00

 0.00

 0.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

Check Amount  0.00

10/28/2015 10365 EFI GLOBAL, INC. 39205

PHASE I ENVIRONMENTALPrinted

 12,200.00

 0.00

 12,200.00

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27782 610-4930-6720.000  12,200.00 12,200.00  0.00

Check Amount  12,200.00

10/28/2015 10201 OLIVAREZ MADRUGA, LLP 39206

LEGAL SERVICES AUGUST 2015Printed

 42,857.66

 0.00

 42,857.66

Ref# GL Number Gross Discount Amount

 27779 001-4005-6755.000  135.48 135.48  0.00

 27779 001-4930-6391.000  819.00 819.00  0.00

 27779 001-4005-6720.000  19,181.00 19,181.00  0.00

 27780 001-4930-6755.000  1,085.50 1,085.50  0.00

 27780 610-4930-6755.000  6,443.50 6,443.50  0.00

 27781 001-4005-6720.000  11,710.94 11,710.94  0.00

 27781 001-4930-6391.000  115.50 115.50  0.00

 27781 001-4930-6755.000  3,366.74 3,366.74  0.00

Check Amount  42,857.66

Total Checks: Bank Total(excluding void checks): 117  915,247.44

Grand Total(excluding void checks):Total Checks:  117  915,247.44

Page 122 of 237



Attachment B 
 
 

CITY OF CUDAHY 
Payroll Warrants including payroll taxes and insurance premiums: 

 
October 1, 2015 October 15, 2015 October 29, 2015

Issued Warrants Number 20217 - 20280 20281 - 20329 20330 - 20377
Voided Warrants

9,900.10$           9,742.41$           6,888.49$           
Direct Deposits (a) 61,805.39           52,830.34           49,392.70$         
CalPERS Direct Deposit (b) 28,907.06           
CalPERS Direct Deposit (c) 11,860.13           
Payroll taxes (d) 11,906.92           17,382.66           10,631.47           

Total Amount 124,379.60$       79,955.41$         66,912.66$         

Note (a) - Employess / Council Members / Commissioners
Note (b) - Payments for CalPERS medical insurance
Note (c) - Payments for CalPERS retirement contributions
Note (d) - Federal and State payroll taxes

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 123 of 237



Cash and Investment Report by Fund October 2015

July 1, 2015 Inflow Outflow October 31, 2015 Receipts Disbursements

YTD YTD October 2015 October 2015

001 General Fund 4,202,673.02     1,771,773.54    3,658,998.17    2,315,448.39        390,289.85        987,241.29       

040 Drug Assets Seizure Fund 33,463.81          1,672.57           6,188.03           28,948.35             21.19                 

201 State Gas Tax 1,155,209.38     201,316.15       290,148.98       1,066,376.55        53,417.21          55,764.43         

235 Other Grants -                     10,613.74         24,317.29         (13,703.55)            10,613.74          9,497.43           

240 Prop 1 B - Local Street Improv. 426,851.03        488.52              321,478.57       105,860.98           234.29               7,410.00           

251 Prop C 303,022.72        127,648.55       155,222.34       275,448.93           29,034.82          8,781.05           

252 Prop A 528,808.59        140,137.47       25,927.70         643,018.36           30,392.97          4,257.58           

253 Measure R 674,025.63        87,375.29         100,962.89       660,438.03           44,288.54          5,551.95           

255 TDA 21,297.00          -                    21,297.00         -                        

257 AQMD 39,132.03          7,910.92           4,617.96           42,424.99             29.17                 1,154.24           

260 Used Oil 13,582.26          18.24                -                    13,600.50             10.15                 

261 California Beverage Container 6,723.30            6,640.02           -                    13,363.32             6,636.02            

265 Recycling Grant 14,223.41          19.09                -                    14,242.50             10.62                 

270 C.O.P.S 183,838.19        32,293.61         98,502.30         117,629.50           32,180.73          15,187.23         

280 County Park Bond (149,084.19)       12,076.19         25,003.28         (162,011.28)          9,117.90           

300 CAL Home 73,368.33          5,102.25           416.00              78,054.58             58.24                 16.00                

350 Street Lighting Fund 54,101.62          16,500.33         42,240.73         28,361.22             23.27                 10,137.49         

510 CDBG (106,618.99)       234,825.56       156,902.00       (28,695.43)            40,109.00          24,381.05         

515 Federal STPL 357,690.30        480.20              -                    358,170.50           267.18               

610 Successor Agency 2,376,586.79     24,307.50         2,326,922.72    73,971.57             14,250.00          49,145.08         

710 Youth Foundation 29,230.04          11,839.10         2,839.56           38,229.58             283.88               

720 Senior's Account 132.80               -                    -                    132.80                  

730 Refuse Assessment -                     6,034.07           6,034.07           -                        

10,238,257.07   2,699,072.91    7,268,019.59    5,669,310.39        652,150.87        1,187,642.72    

LAIF- CITY 7,170,945.82     9,527.13 1,900,000.00    5,280,472.95        4,854.20

Wells Fargo 3,067,311.31     2,689,545.78 5,368,019.59 388,837.50           647,296.67 1,187,642.72

TOTAL 10,238,257.13   2,699,072.91    7,268,019.59    5,669,310.45 652,150.87        1,187,642.72    

Total cash disbursements per October Demand and Payroll Reports

AP disbursements 915,247.44       

Payroll - October 1, 2015 124,379.60       

Payroll - October 15, 2015 79,955.14         

Payroll - October 29, 2015 66,912.66         

Add:  Total Bank charges in October 2015 997.50              

Add:  Credit card charges 150.38              

Total Cash Disbursements per October Cash & Investment Report 1,187,642.72    

CITY OF CUDAHY

Attachment C

Page 124 of 237



City of Cudahy
Summary of Cash Receipt/Disbursement by Month - FY2015

Date
Cash Receipts Disbursement

July 2014 720,490.40                 923,923.80                
August 2014 382,106.70                 767,879.72                
September 2014 1,424,972.65             3,160,792.70             (b)
October 2014 471,491.06                 786,581.62                
November 2014 421,325.22                 691,734.37                
December 2014 850,582.56                 892,504.79                
January 2015 3,491,089.91             (a) 1,051,651.89             
February 2015 599,153.80                 696,856.77                
March 2015 862,605.62                 2,192,685.05             (b)
April 2015 743,355.21                 1,191,614.05             
May 2015 2,482,941.72             1,275,339.77             
June 2015 2,466,462.02             (a) 588,400.14                

Total: 14,916,576.87           14,219,964.67          

Note (a) - ROPS distribution from County included
Note (b) - ROPS payment included

Date
Cash Receipts Disbursement

July 2014 471,300.02                 781,449.52                
August 2014 260,467.68                 611,378.49                
September 2014 940,546.11                 303,299.61                
October 2014 292,356.65                 626,514.92                
November 2014 284,522.66                 533,804.16                
December 2014 357,716.42                 704,427.61                
January 2015 1,807,086.34             (1) 686,616.47                
February 2015 361,051.74                 261,378.22                
March 2015 205,294.22                 928,588.38                
April 2015 368,848.22                 619,116.39                
May 2015 2,025,604.57             (2) 656,597.18                
June 2015 214,465.92                 284,937.60                

Total: 7,589,260.55             6,998,108.55             

Average Per Month: 632,438.38                 583,175.71                

Note (1) - bi-annual motor-vehicle-in-lieu included
Note (2) - bi-annual motor-vehicle-in-lieu and Prop A exchange included

All Funds

General Fund

Page 125 of 237



 
 

Blank Page 

Page 126 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  December 14, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Steven Dobrenen, Finance Director 

Subject: Consideration to Approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) for the  
  Month of October 2015 

 
RECOMMENDATION   
 
The City Council is requested to approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for 
the month of October 2015 in the amount of $5,280,472.95. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. In 1955, the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA) started. LAIF became part of the 

PMIA. The oversight is provided by the Pooled Money Investment Board (PMIB) and an 
in-house Investment Committee. The PMIB members consist of the State Treasurer, 
Director of Finance, and State Controller.  

 
2. In 1977, LAIF was created as a voluntary program by Section 16429.1 et seq. of the 

California Government Code.  The program was intended to be used as an investment 
alternative for California's local governments and special districts.  The LAIF continues 
today under State Treasurer John Chiang's administration.  

 
3. On October 1, 2015, the balance in LAIF was $5,275,618.75 (See Attachment). 
 
4. On October 31, 2015, the balance in LAIF was $5,280,472.95 (See Attachment). 
 
 
 

 

Item Number 
10E 

Page 127 of 237



ANALYSIS 
 
The voluntary program offers local agencies the opportunity to participate in a major 
portfolio, which invests hundreds of millions of dollars, using the investment expertise of the 
State Treasurer’s Office investment staff at no additional cost to the taxpayer. 
 
All securities are purchased under the authority of Government Code Section 16430 and 
16480.4. The State Treasurer's Office takes delivery of all securities purchased on a delivery 
versus payment basis using a third party custodian.   
 
Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080 indicates, "Except as otherwise provided, no 
warrant shall be drawn or evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time 
sufficient money in the treasury legally applicable to the payment of the same." 
 
The report in Attachment A, in conjunction with the Demands and Payroll including the 
Investment Report by Fund for the month of October 2015, demonstrates the sufficiency of 
funds available to pay demands and payroll as required by Cudahy Municipal Code Section 
3.04.080.  
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Once the City Council approves the October 2015 LAIF, the LAIF ending balance of 
$5,280,472.95 may be relied upon when determining whether or not there are sufficient 
funds available to pay demands and payroll as required by Cudahy Municipal Code Section 
3.04.080.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Balance 

 
 
 
 

Page 128 of 237



 
 

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 
  

General Account - City #98-19-225 
 
 
 
 
Beginning Balance as of: October 01, 2015 $5,275,618.75 
 
  
Ending Balance as of  October 31, 2015   $5,280,472.95 

=========== 
 

Page 129 of 237



 
 

Blank Page 

Page 130 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  December 14, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Laura Valdivia, Interim City Clerk 

Subject: Consideration to Review and Approve the Draft Minutes of June 8, 2015, for 
the Regular Meeting of the City Council and the Joint Meeting of the City of 
Cudahy as Successor Agency to the Cudahy Development Commission (Agency) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to review and approve the City Council / Agency draft minutes 
for June 8, 2015. 
  
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
June 8, 2015 Draft Minutes 

 

Item Number 

10F 

Page 131 of 237



ATTACHMENT 
MINUTES 

 
CUDAHY CITY COUNCIL REGUAR MEETING and 

CITY OF CUDAHY AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
CUDAHY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION JOINT MEETING 

 
JUNE 8, 2015 6:30 P.M. 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Mayor Markovich called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m.  

 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT:  Council/Agency Member Garcia (arrived at 6:41 p.m.) 
 Council/Agency Member Guerrero 
 Council/Agency Member Sanchez 
 Vice Mayor/Vice Chair Hernandez 
 Mayor/Chair Markovich 
 
ABSENT: None  
 
ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Jose E. Pulido, City Attorney Rick Olivarez, Deputy City 

Clerk Victor Ferrer, Acting Community Development Director Michael 
Allen, Finance Director Steven Dobrenen and Acting Human Resources 
Specialist Jennifer Hernandez. 

 
  
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Markovich. 
 
 
4. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. A presentation was given on canvassing efforts by the Los Angeles County Department of 

Animal Care and Control for expired licenses and unregistered animals. 
 

B. A presentation was made by Librarian Jose Parra of the Cudahy Branch of the Los 
Angeles County Public Library announcing upcoming programs and services. 

 
C. A presentation was made on the Draft Fiscal Year 2015-16 City Budget by Finance 

Director Dobrenen. 
 

City Council discussion ensued regarding the Lugo Park appropriation, excessive taxation, 
revenue enhancing opportunities, responsible expenditures; revenues and expenses, 
economic development and non-profits; grants, bringing fees up to par where they should 
be, bare bones budget, pension costs, employee wages, bringing up skill set in the 
community,  partnering with non-profits and fundraising. 

 

Page 132 of 237



  
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Markovich announced this is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council / 
Agency on matters relating only to items on the agenda.  
 
Sandra Orozco thanked the School District for assisting her, commented on the stabbing of a 
three year old child and acknowledged the student who received a full scholarship to UC Davis. 
 
Pamela Munguia stated she opposes overnight parking, citation fees and Agenda Item 9E. 
 
Francisco Torres spoke on board and non-profit groups. 
 
Carmen Hernandez stated she opposes the 15% increase. 
 
Council Member Garcia departed the meeting at 7:21 p.m. and returned at 7:24 p.m. 
 
Maria Varjas stated she opposes tax and citation increases. 
 
Danamey Aguilar spoke in opposition to increases. 
 
Felix Reyes stated he wants staff salaries reduced instead of increasing trash rates but is okay 
with the citation increase as long as it’s fair. 
 
Javier Flores spoke in opposition to trash rates and citation increases. 
 
William Tejada spoke against Agenda Item 9E and opposes trash rate increase. 
 
Elsa Ruano spoke regarding citations. 
 
Everardo Navarro spoke on the trash rate increase, in opposition to Agenda Item 9E and new 
businesses. 
 
Susie de Santiago spoke on business licenses for residential properties and better customer 
service regarding information being mailed out. 
 
Patricia Covarrubias stated she does not agree with Agenda Item 9E. 
 
Gloria Sandoval stated she disagrees with the trash rate increase. 
 
Maria Rosas spoke regarding citations she has received. 
 
Adelina Garcia spoke against the citation and trash rate increase. 
 
With no one else wishing to speak, Mayor Markovich closed Public Comment. 
 
 
6. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Council Member Guerrero 1) announced he participated in Memorial Day events in various 
cities; 2) attended a scholarship awards banquet and encouraged parents to seek free 
educational opportunities offered by the Ivy League; 4) participated as the keynote speaker at 

Page 133 of 237



San Gabriel Valley breakfast with local elected officials; and 5) congratulated Ref Rodriguez as 
a new school board member. 
 
Council Member Garcia 1) congratulated all 2015 Cudahy graduates; 2) announced the cyber 
twins born and raised in Boyle Heights will be presenting at the June 22 Council meeting; and 3) 
spoke on the difficult decisions Council has to make and encouraged the public to listen to 
Council debate. 
 
Council Member Sanchez 1) stated there is a lot of graffiti throughout the City and asked staff to 
be proactive; and 2) addressed increase in fees before the Council and misinformation. 
 
Vice Mayor Hernandez addressed statistics regarding parking citations and the reduction in 
revenues. 
 
Mayor Markovich 1) announced he attended the Memorial Day event and a Southern California 
Latino Policy Forum, and 2) announced the Excide Plant closure and clean-up informative 
meeting on June 11th at 6:00 p.m. at Maywood Academy 
 
Council Member Sanchez departed the meeting at 8:21 p.m. and returned at 8:26 p.m. 
 
7. CITY MANAGER REPORT (information only) 
 
City Manager Pulido reported on 1) balancing the budget, a cost recovery plan, strategic 
planning session on June 13th, the timing of one-time expenditures, the City’s commitment to 
completing Lugo Park, and the FY 2015-16 Budget Public Hearing on scheduled for June 22nd at 
6:30 p.m.;  2) staff working overtime on graffiti and the Sheriff is assisting to keep staff safe and 
avoid problems; 3) the graffiti vendor is working on color match which makes the City look 
cleaner; and 4) staff is tackling the tough issues one at a time but with only seven full time and 
45 part time staff members there is not a lot that can be cut from the budget.  
 
8. WAIVER OF FULL READING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Garcia, and seconded by Council Member Sanchez, 
to waive full text reading of all Resolutions and Ordinances by single motion.  The motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Garcia, and seconded by Council Member Sanchez, 
to move Item 12A up to this point on the agenda.  The motion carried (3-1-0-1) by the following 
vote:  
 
AYES:  Garcia, Sanchez, Hernandez 
NOES:  Markovich 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: Guerrero 
 
12A.  Discussion on Citations/Fee Increase (Sanchez) 
 
Council Member Sanchez addressed the differences in the new and old fee structure and stated 
this brings the fees back to what they were before. 
 
Council Member discussion ensued regarding opposition to the parking citation fee increase; a 
parking citation appeals board; the appeals process being a separate item from the fees; last 
year’s citation fee decrease resulted in the tripling of citations and the reduction of revenues; 

Page 134 of 237



citizens paying the price for people to break the law; Council making informed decisions; the 
need for a fee schedule and study; reduction in code enforcement staff; new fees are 30% 
below the surrounding areas; cost to outsource to third party vendor; and enforcement. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Sanchez, and seconded by Vice Mayor Hernandez, 
to call for the question on Item 12A.  The motion carried (3-1-0-1) by the following vote:  
 
AYES:  Garcia, Sanchez, Hernandez 
NOES:  Guerrero 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: Markovich 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Sanchez, and seconded by Council Member Garcia, 
to place on a future agenda the previous fee citation fee structure and compare to the new one, 
and provide analysis of impact of fee decrease to the City.  The motion carried (3-0-0-2) by the 
following vote:  
 
AYES:  Garcia, Sanchez, Hernandez 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: Guerrero, Markovich 
 
9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Council Member Guerrero pulled Item Nos. 9A, 9B and 9E for further discussion 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Vice Mayor Hernandez, and seconded by Council Member Garcia to 
approve Consent Calendar Item Nos. 9C and 9D.  The motion carried (4-0-0-1) by the following 
roll call vote. 
 
AYES:  Garcia, Sanchez, Hernandez, Markovich 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: Guerrero 
 
C. Approval of a First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with HR Dynamics 

& Performance Management for human resources consulting services. 
 

D. Approval of a Second Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with HR 
Dynamics & Performance Management for professional management consulting services. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR PULLED ITEMS 
 
Item No. 9A was pulled by Council Member Guerrero for further discussion. 
 
A. Consideration to Approve the City Demands and Payroll Including Cash and Investment 

Report for the Month of April 2015 
 
The staff report was presented by Finance Director Dobrenen. 
 
Council Member Guerrero asked about the reporting cycle and bank reconciliation timeframe. 

 
  

Page 135 of 237



Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Garcia, and seconded by Mayor Markovich to 
approve the Demands and Payroll in the Amount of $1,191,614.05 including Cash and 
Investment Report by Fund for the month of April 2015.  The motion carried (4-0-0-1) by the 
following roll call vote. 
 
AYES:  Garcia, Sanchez, Hernandez, Markovich 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: Guerrero 
 
Item No. 9B was pulled by Council Member Guerrero for further discussion. 
 
B. Consideration to Approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for the Month 

of April 2015 
 
The staff report was presented by Finance Director Dobrenen. 
 
City Council discussion ensued regarding the recurring theme of disbursements exceeding 
receipts; alternative investment vehicle to the LAIF; clarification on the agenda item; providing 
the public with a one page snapshot explaining the item; and reference to the City policy on 
investments. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Garcia, and seconded by Council Member Sanchez 
to approve as recommended. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Item No. 9E was pulled by Council Member Guerrero for further discussion. 
 
E. Consideration to Approve Resolution No. 15-20, Adopting Fringe Benefits and Salary Plan 

Establishing Provisions for All Full-Time Employees, Hourly Employees, and Appointed 
Officials 

 
The staff report was presented by Acting Human Resources Specialist Hernandez. 
 
City Council discussion ensued regarding concern over merit pay increases and other clauses 
as they pertain to the City Manager and appointed officials who have employment agreements 
in place; employees’ rights to collective bargaining; and this being a routine matter keeping the 
City in compliance with state law. 
 
City Attorney Olivarez responded that currently the City Manager has a contract in effect and 
any amendment would need to be brought before the City Council and voted on. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Mayor Markovich, and seconded by Vice Mayor Hernandez to 
adopt Resolution No. 15-20.  The motion carried (4-1) by the following roll call vote. 
 
AYES:  Garcia, Sanchez, Hernandez, Markovich 
NOES:  Guerrero 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
 
  

Page 136 of 237



10. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A. Public Hearing Regarding Increased Fees for the Handling of Solid Waste and Recyclable 

Materials Against Residential and Commercial Properties Within the City 
 
The staff report was presented by Finance Director Dobrenen. 
 
City Council discussion ensued regarding revisiting the evergreen clause in the agreement; 
future rate negotiation; the City inheriting the contract including the evergreen clause; monthly 
increase comes out to 35 cents for residents and 20 cents for commercial, and the last  increase 
was three years ago, 
 
Mayor Markovich opened the public hearing and asked for public comment. 
 
Patricia Covarrubias spoke against increase. 
 
Lilia Ramirez spoke on the issue of minimum wage and impact on families. 
 
Mayor Markovich recessed the meeting at 9:22 p.m. for a short break and reconvened at 9:30 
p.m. 
 
Rosario Pacheco spoke on parking permits and tickets.   
 
Trinidad Guillen spoke against trash rate increase and parking tickets. 
 
Carmen Hernandez stated she disagrees with the rate increases. 
 
Felix Reyes spoke against the trash rate increase and asked that the City request more from the 
trash hauler. 
 
Adelina Garcia stated she disagrees with trash rate increases. 
 
Victor Markovich asked that and asked that people who are taking recyclables be cited instead 
of raising rates. 
 
City Attorney Olivarez cited section 4.3.3 of the agreement stating Consolidated did provide the 
required notice under the state health and safety code.  
 
Elizabeth Martinez representing Republic stated they are working hard on the bulky item pick up 
and will reach out to the residents. 
 
There being no further public comments, Mayor Markovich closed the public hearing. 

 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Sanchez, and seconded by Council Member Garcia, 
to adopt Resolution No. 15-21 and receive and file the request from Consolidated Disposal 
Service, LLC, to increase fees for the handling of solid waste and recyclable materials against 
residential properties and commercial customers within the City.  The motion carried (4-0-0-1) 
by the following roll call vote. 
 
AYES:  Garcia, Sanchez, Hernandez, Markovich 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: Guerrero 

Page 137 of 237



11. CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS SESSION 
 

A. Review of Resolution No. 14-77, City-wide Overnight Pilot Parking Program 
 

The staff report was presented by Acting Community Development Director Allen. 
 
Council Member Garcia departed the meeting at 9:56 p.m. and returned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
City Council discussion ensued regarding major overhaul of the municipal code; problems with 
lack of documentation; fine tuning the program through data analysis; problems with registration 
not matching the ID; support for exceptions and providing three day permits for emergencies; 
easing requirements and possibly implementing a daily permit program; extending the pilot 
program; and recommendation for monthly installment payments instead of lump sum. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Mayor Markovich, and seconded by Council Member Sanchez, to 1) 
modify the current structure to make it easier on residents; 2) extend the pilot program to June 
30 2016; 3) add a three day emergency pass per month; and 4) add an exception on an 
incremental basis to reconcile proof of residency with a utility or credit card bill.  The motion 
carried (4-0-0-1) by the following roll call vote. 
 
AYES:  Garcia, Sanchez, Hernandez, Markovich 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: Guerrero 
 
B. Consideration to Introducing Ordinance No. 649 by First Reading Amending Cudahy 

Municipal Code Chapter 3.16 Pertaining to the City’s Purchasing and Sale of Services, 
Supplies, and Equipment  

 
The staff report was presented by Finance Director Dobrenen. 
 
Mayor Markovich departed the meeting at 10:10 p.m. and returned at 10:13 p.m. 
 
City Council discussion ensued regarding concerns with language allowing the purchasing 
officer to authorize spending up to $10,000; clarification on City Manager threshold; proposed 
threshold is for larger cities than Cudahy; agree with streamlining the process but $50,000 is too 
high; and City Council oversight. 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Vice Mayor Hernandez, and seconded by Council Member Guerrero 
to introduce Ordinance No. 649 by first reading with a change of cutting the proposed thresholds 
in half.  The motion carried (3-1-0-1) by the following roll call vote. 
 
AYES:  Guerrero, Sanchez, Hernandez 
NOES:  Markovich 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN: Garcia 
 
12. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
 
B.   Discussion on the Creation of Volunteer Council Liaison Position for City Sports Programs 

(Garcia)  
 

Page 138 of 237



Council Member Garcia requested that staff bring this item back to the City Council for formal 
consideration. 

 
C. Discussion on Rental Property License Permit and Outstanding Fees (Sanchez) 
 
This item was tabled to the next City Council meeting. 
 
D. Discussion on Reassignment of Council Members and Committees/Boards (Hernandez) 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Sanchez, and seconded by Council Member Garcia, 
to direct staff to bring this item back for formal consideration by the City Council.  The motion 
carried by consensus. 
 
13. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (Closed Session) 
 
Mayor Markovich announced that public comment is now open and limited to closed session 
items and the time limit on each speaker is three (3) minutes. 
 
With no members of the public wishing to speak, Mayor Markovich closed oral communications. 
 
Council Member Guerrero departed the meeting at 10:30 p.m. 
 
14. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION  
 
Mayor Markovich recessed the City Council / Agency meeting to Closed Session at 10:31 p.m. 
and City Attorney Olivarez read into the record the titles of the Closed Session Agenda Items as 
follows: 

A. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6(a) – Conference with 
Labor Negotiator Regarding Represented Employees City’s Designated Representative(s) 
for Negotiations: Jose Pulido, City Manager, Laurie LoFranco and Oliver Yee, Special 
Counsel Employee Organization: Cudahy Miscellaneous Employees Association (CMEA) 
 

B. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (2) and 54956.9(e) (1) 
– Conference with Legal Counsel to Discuss Matter Involving Potential Litigation and/or 
Significant Exposure to Litigation – [Two (2) Matters] - This Matter will be heard jointly by 
the Cudahy City Council and the Cudahy City Council in its capacity as Successor Agency 
to the Cudahy Redevelopment Agency. 
 

C. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) and 54956.9(e)(1) – 
Conference with Legal Counsel to Discuss Matter Involving Potential Litigation and/or 
Significant Exposure to Litigation – [One (1) potential matter] 
 

D. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4)  - Conference with 
Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation/Initiation of Litigation (Deciding Whether to Initiate 
Litigation): [One (1) potential matter]  

 
15. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT 
 
City Attorney Olivarez reported that with regard to:  
 
Item 14A, the City Council received a briefing and no final action was taken;  
 

Page 139 of 237



Item 14B, the City Council received a briefing, direction was given and no final action was taken. 
Council Member Garcia abstained from this item. 
 
Item 14C, the City Council received a briefing, direction was given and no final action was 
taken; and  
 
Item 14D, the City Council received a briefing from legal counsel and no final action was taken. 
 
 
16. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
Mayor Markovich announced this is the time set aside for citizens to address the City Council / 
Agency on any matter under the City’s jurisdiction. 
 
Kimberly Ortega spoke on the Excide Plant closure and clean-up meeting on June 11th at 6:00 
p.m. at Maywood Academy and urged the Council and public to attend. 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT  
 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Hernandez and seconded by Mayor Markovich to adjourn 
the City Council / Agency meeting at 11:09 p.m. to the Regular and Joint Meeting as Successor 
Agency to the Cudahy Development Commission on Monday, June 22, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
       
 Cristian Markovich 
 Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Laura Valdivia 
Interim City Clerk  
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

Page 140 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  December 14, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 

Subject: Consideration to Receive and File Aging and Senior Citizen Commission 
Minutes; Public Safety Commission Minutes; Planning Commission Minutes; 
and Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to receive and file the minutes for the: 
 
1. Aging and Senior Citizen Commission meeting of October 12, 2015; 

 
2. Public Safety Commission meeting of October 13, 2015; 

 
3. Planning Commission meeting of October 19, 2015; and 

 
4. Parks and Recreation Commission meeting of October 23, 2015. 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
1. On October 12, 2015, the Aging and Senior Citizen Commission held their regularly 

scheduled meeting.  
 

2. On October 13, 2015, the Public Safety Commission held their regularly scheduled 
meeting. 

 
3. On October 19, 2015, the Planning Commission held their regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
4. On October 23, 2015, the Parks and Recreation Commission held their regularly 

scheduled meeting. 

 

Item Number 

10G 

Page 141 of 237



ANALYSIS 
 
Below are the summaries for various City Commission meetings held in October 2015. 
 
1. Aging and Senior Citizen Commission: Following is a summary of actions taken at the 

October 12, 2015 meeting: 
 

Members Present: 
 Commissioner Cornejo 
 Chairperson Pro-Tem Pena 
 Chairperson Covarrubias 

Commissioner Gessner 
  
Business Session: 
 
4A.  A request to approve the minutes of the Regular Aging and Senior Commission 

meeting held Monday, September 14, 2015.  
 

Motion to approve by Chairperson Covarrubias, seconded by Chairperson Pro-
tem Pena. Approved by unanimous vote.  

 
4B.  Presentation by the South Bay Health and Insurance Services (SBHIS) regarding 

an ice cream social. 

  Receive and file. 
 
4C.  Halloween Event Update.  

Receive and file. 
 
 
2. Public Safety Commission:  Following is a summary of actions taken at the October 13, 

2015 meeting: 
 

Members Present: 
Commissioner Cardonne 
Commissioner Cruz 
Chairperson Pro-Tem Carrera 
 
Members Absent: 
Chairperson Parrish 

Page 142 of 237



Business Session: 
 
4A.  September monthly report from the Volunteers on Patrol. 

Motion to receive and file by Commissioner Cardonne, seconded by 
Commissioner Cruz. Approved by unanimous vote.  

  
4B.  September monthly report from the L.A. County Sheriff’s Department. 

Motion to receive and file by Commissioner Cruz, seconded by Commissioner 
Cardonne. Approved by unanimous vote. 

 
4C.  September monthly report from Code Enforcement Department. 

Motion to receive and file by Commissioner Cardonne, seconded by 
Commissioner Cruz. Approved by unanimous vote. 

 
4D.  A request to approve the minutes of the regular Public Safety Commission 

Meeting held on September 8, 2015. 

Motion to receive and file by Commissioner Cruz, seconded by Commissioner 
Cardonne.  Approved by unanimous vote. 

  
 

3. Planning Commission: Following is a summary of actions taken at the October 19, 2015 
meeting: 

 
Members Present: 
Commissioner Alcantar 
Commissioner Corvera-Hernandez 
Commissioner de Santiago 
Commissioner Mendoza 
Commissioner Fuentes 
 
Business Session: 
 
8A. A request to approve the minutes of the Regular Planning Commission meeting 
held on August 17, 2015. 
 
 Motion to approve made by Commissioner Alcantar, seconded by Commissioner 
Mendoza.  Approved by a unanimous vote. 
 

Page 143 of 237



9A.  Updates/Highlights on the General Plan and Strategic Growth Council 
Sustainable Communities Planning Grant. 
  
Receive and file. 
 
 

4. Parks and Recreation Commission:  Following is a summary of actions taken at the 
October 23, 2015 meeting: 

 
Members Present: 
Commissioner Chavez 
Commissioner Cruz 
Chairperson Pro-tem Ortega 
Chairperson Cuevas   
 
Absent: 
Commissioner Aguilera 

 
Business Session: 
 

5A.  A request to approve the minutes of the Regular Parks and Recreation Commission 
meeting held on September 25, 2015. 

 Motion to approve item 4A made by Chairperson Cuevas, seconded by Chairperson Pro-
tem Ortega. Approved by unanimous voice vote.  

 
5B. Discussion Item – Cudahy Youth Foundation. 

 Motion to receive and file made by Chairperson Pro-tem Ortega, seconded by 
Chairperson Cuevas. Approved by unanimous voice vote. 

 
5C.  Discussion Item – Cudahy Youth Foundation Snack Bar. 

 Motion to receive and file made by Chairperson Pro-tem Ortega, seconded by 
Commissioner Cuevas. Approved by unanimous voice vote. 

 
5D. Discussion Item – Fireworks Stand. 
 
 Motion to receive and file made by Chairperson Pro-tem Ortega, seconded by 

Commissioner Cuevas. Approved by unanimous voice vote. 
5E. Create Policy – Subsidized sports registration fees for Cudahy Youth. 

Page 144 of 237



 
 Motion to table item made by Chairperson Pro-tem Ortega, seconded by Commissioner 

Cuevas. Approved by unanimous voice vote. 
  
 

CONCLUSION 
 
The City Council is requested to receive and file this report. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Minutes of the Aging and Senior Citizen Commission, October 12, 2015 
B. Minutes of the Public Safety Commission, October 13, 2015 
C. Minutes of the Planning Commission, October 19, 2015 
D. Minutes of the Parks and Recreation Commission, October 23, 2015 

Page 145 of 237



MINUTES 
Aging and Senior Citizen Commission 

A Regular meeting held at Leo P. Turner 
4835 Clara Street, Cudahy, CA 90201 
Monday, October 12, 2015 - 2:00pm 

 
 
1. Chairperson Covarrubias called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Present:  Commissioner Cornejo 
      Chairperson Pro-Tem Pena 
      Chairperson Covarrubias 
      Commissioner Gessner 

 
Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairperson Covarrubias  
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Chairperson Covarrubias announced that this was the time set aside for citizens to address the 
Senior Commission matters relating to Commission business. 
 
 
Hearing no speakers Chairperson Covarrubias ordered the session closed.  
   
4. BUSINESS SESSION   

 
4A.  A request to approve the minutes of the Regular Aging and Senior Commission meeting 
 held on Monday, September 14, 2015. 
 

Motion to approve item 4A made by Chairperson Covarrubias, seconded by Chairperson 
Pro-Tem Pena, approved by unanimous voice vote.  
 

4B. South Bay Health and Insurance Services (SBHIS) ice cream social 
 

SBHIS would like to set up a table to give information regarding their insurance company 
and give free ice cream.  Staff member Dulce recommended that the commission give 
direction to staff to contact SBHIS to schedule social. 
 
Commissioner Gessner requested that permission be given to staff to contact SBHIS to 
schedule ice cream social.   

 
4C. Halloween Event update 
 
 Copies of event fliers were given to the commissioners. 

Page 146 of 237



 
Senior Halloween Party is scheduled for October 30, 2015 from 10:00 am – 1:30 pm.  At 
the same time October birthdays will be celebrated.  Items that were approved for 
purchase for the event: decorations, table covers if needed, cake, plates, forks, napkins, 
$50 for music, 150 candy bags and candy. 

  
Commissioner Gessner stated that Gilbert from Apple Care is supplying music for the 
event. 
 
Staff member Dulce Aguilera informed commission of City Halloween events scheduled. 
Halloween Movie Night on October 23, 2015 from 6:00 pm – 10:00 pm.  The movie 
scheduled is the “Book of Life”.  
Halloween Family Dance on October 16, 2015 at Lugo Teen Center from 6:00 pm – 9:00 
pm.   
Halloween Carnival held at Clara Expansion Park on October 30, 2015 from 6:00 pm – 
9:00 pm. 
 

5. COMMISSION BUSINESS 
 
Commissioner Gessner requested that staff contact the office of Congresswomen Lucille 
Roybal-Allard and invite her to the Senior Christmas party on December 18, 2015.   
 
Commissioner Cornejo requested that staff look into scheduling a trip to Newport Beach 
Christmas boat lighting event. 
 
Chairperson Covarrubias requested an update on all events and trips scheduled for November 
and December. 
 
Chairperson Covarrubias requested that maintenance be done to the ceiling at Turner hall.  
Leaking is causing damage to ceiling tile. 
 
Chairperson Covarrubias requested that a change to the time of the Aging and Senior Citizen 
Commission meeting be added to the next agenda. 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Hearing no objections Chairperson Covarrubias ordered the meeting to be adjourned. 
 
The regular meeting of the Senior and Aging Commission meeting was adjourned at 2:26 p.m. 
on Monday, October 12, 2105 in Leo P. Turner, 4835 Clara Street, Cudahy, California 90201 
 

 
 

Page 147 of 237



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of November 2015 
 
 
 
____________________ 
Chairperson Covarrubias 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________ 
Commission Recorder 
Dulce Aguilera 

Page 148 of 237



Page 149 of 237



Page 150 of 237



Page 151 of 237



Page 152 of 237



Page 153 of 237



Page 154 of 237



Page 155 of 237



Page 156 of 237



Page 157 of 237



Page 158 of 237



Page 159 of 237



Page 160 of 237



Page 161 of 237



Page 162 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  December 14, 2015  

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Jessica Balandran, Senior Administrative Analyst 

Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Supporting and Advocating for 
the Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC) and Volunteer Income Tax Assistance 
(VITA) Program  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to adopt a proposed resolution (Attachment A) supporting and 
advocating for the Federal and State Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC) and Volunteer Income 
Tax Assistance (VITA) programs. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On October 1, 2015, Vice Mayor Christian Hernandez received correspondence from the 
Chairman of the California State Board of Equalization, Jerome E. Horton, encouraging the 
City Council to help in advocating the EITC and the VITA Program to qualified families and 
individuals through the adoption of a resolution.   
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
As tax season near, the Internal Review Service (IRS) remind us that an estimated 15% to 
25% of the EITC goes unclaimed by low-income workers every year. Unknowingly, many of 
the eligible low-income families in our community do not know the EITC tax credit exists or 
they are using paid tax preparers to claim the credit. According to the IRS, about 67% of EITC 
recipients use paid tax preparers, which decreases the amount of net credit they receive. 

 
  

 

Item Number 

10H 

Page 163 of 237



Working families within the City may be entitled to upward of $18,000 in state and federal 
refundable and non-refundable tax credits, grants, and a variety of family resources. These 
constituents may also be entitled to a share of billions in services, such as affordable 
housing, telephone services, low-cost auto insurance and other educational and money- 
saving products.  

 
The Chairman of the California State Board of Equalization, Jerome E. Horton, has partnered 
with the Board of Equalization, Franchise Tax Board, and Internal Revenue Service to 
provide qualified individuals with free income tax preparation and other community 
services. The event is called Free Income Tax Preparation and Family Resource Fair as part of 
the VITA program (Attachment B). 

 
The VITA program is committed to increasing the number of low-income families and 
individuals who claim EITC and receive their income tax refunds. A list of preliminary 2016 
free income tax preparation and family services events is attached (Attachment C). 

 
The City will receive sample notices and announcements to send to notify residents of these 
valuable resources. This year, qualified taxpayers who earn less than $53,267 may be eligible 
to receive a maximum of $6,242 in federal EITC. On the state level, qualified taxpayers who 
earn less than $13,870 may be eligible to receive a maximum of $2,653 in state EITC. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Support of this resolution will help educate countless families in Cudahy that are possibly 
missing out on these services. The partnership will help spread the word to Cudahy residents 
on available tax credits, grants, and other family resources.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
There is no cost associated with the adoption of this resolution. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Proposed Resolution Supporting the Earned Income Tax Credit and Volunteer Income Tax  
 Assistance Program 
B. Letter from Chairman of the California State Board of Equalization, Jerome E. Horton 
C. Preliminary 2016 List of Free Income Tax Preparation and Family Services Events 

Page 164 of 237



RESOLUTION NO. 15-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA SUPPORTING THE EARNED INCOME 
TAX CREDIT AND VOLUNTEER INCOME TAX ASSISTANCE 

PROGRAM 

 

WHEREAS, insufficient income contributes to many of the social and human service 
needs in our state; and  

WHEREAS, the Federal Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC) provides tax relief and 
income support to low income working families; and  

WHEREAS, the EITC lifts millions of individuals out of poverty each year in the United 
States by supporting work and self-sufficiency while reducing the need for public assistance; 
and  

WHEREAS, each year, the EITC helps approximately 3.2 million individuals in California 
and brings more than $7.2 billion into California’s economy; and,  

WHEREAS, every year one million families who quality for EITC fail to apply for the 
credit, representing a loss of $1.8 billion in increased income for local communities; and  

WHEREAS, increasing the use of EITC by the qualified citizens of the City of Cudahy 
would help stimulate our local economy and increase access to millions income; and  

WHEREAS, every resident earning less than $53,267 a year may qualify for $6,242 in 
Federal EITC which may be used to lower their taxes or increase their tax refund; and  

WHEREAS, every resident earning less than $13,870 a year may qualify for $2,653 in 
State EITC which may be used to lower their taxes or increase their tax refund; and 

 WHEREAS, for every 1,000 residents who qualify and apply for EITC, it represents a 
potential $6 million in economic stimulus for our community; and  

WHEREAS, increasing EITC utilization represents a highly cost-effective economic 
development strategy; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Cudahy 
encourages the City Manager to identify and utilize existing and potential public/private 
partnerships to inform citizens about the availability of the Federal and State Earned Income 
Tax Credit and Volunteer Income Tax Assistance programs.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Cudahy does hereby 
encourage each city entity to work in partnership with private outreach campaigns to identify 
and utilize existing communications mechanisms to inform their employees and citizens about 
the availability of the EITC and VITA programs, which may include city publications, billing 

Page 165 of 237



notices, websites, human resource materials and communications, correspondence, and forms 
from the City Business Tax and Fee department; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Cudahy hereby directs 
the City Manager to place a public service announcement on the City’s local cable show and to 
have VITA related posters and brochures at City facilities including public libraries, city hall, and 
all public sites throughout the city; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Cudahy join the California State Board of 
Equalization, Franchise Tax Board, Internal Revenue Service and Jerome E. Horton, Chairman 
to the California State Board of Equalization in advocating the Earned Income Tax Credit and 
the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance Program to qualified families and individuals.  

 

 

       
 Cristian Markovich 
 Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

  
Laura Valdivia 
Interim City Clerk 

Page 166 of 237



Page 167 of 237



Page 168 of 237



Page 169 of 237



Page 170 of 237



Page 171 of 237



Page 172 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Date:  December 14, 2015 

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By: Isabel Birrueta, City Attorney 

Subject: Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Joe A. 
Gonsalves & Son for Advocacy Services 

   
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council / Successor Agency is requested to approve an Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) with Joe A. Gonsalves & Son (Gonsalves) for a six month term for advocacy 
services for items that need to be approved by the California Department of Finance (DOF) 
pursuant to disillusion law. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency began performing its functions under the 

Dissolution Law, Parts 1.8 and 1.85 of the Health and Safety Code (HSC), as amended by 
AB1484 and other subsequent legislation (together, the "Dissolution Law"), to administer 
the enforceable obligations and otherwise unwind the former Agency's affairs, all subject 
to the review and approval by the Oversight. 

 
2. On June 27, 2012, the California Governor signed a budget trailer bill AB 1484 into law 

adding provisions to the HSC that requires successor agencies to prepare a Long Range 
Property Management Plan (LRPMP) as a prerequisite to the disposition of real property 
assets that are owned by a successor agency. 
 

3. On October 19, 2013, the DOF issued to the Successor Agency a Finding of Completion 
(FOC) which allowed loans to be placed on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
(ROPS) as enforceable obligations and utilize proceeds derived from bonds issued.  The 

 
 

Item Number 

10I 

Page 173 of 237



FOC also served as notice that the Successor Agency was required to submit a LRPMP to 
DOF. 
 

4. On November 12, 2015, the Successor Agency submitted a LRPMP to the DOF for review, 
which is set for approval prior to January 1, 2016. 
 

5. On November 23, 2015, the City Manager / Executive Director, based upon direction 
given by the City Council / Successor Agency, was tasked to seek out advocacy services 
for items that need to be approved by the DOF pursuant to disillusion law. 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The City Council / Successor Agency authorized the City Manager / Executive Director to 
retain advocacy services related to the LRPMP, in doing so the Successor Agency will have a 
better chance of ratifying all the items that must be approved by the DOF pursuant to 
disillusion law.   
 
The Dissolution Law requires Successor Agencies to submit a LRPMP of their real property 
interests for approval by the Oversight Board and DOF no later than December 31, 2015. The 
LRPMP must include specified information and a proposal for the use or disposition of each 
property.  The real property inventory in the LRPMP must include, among other things, the 
history of environmental contamination, including designation as a brownfield site, any 
related environmental studies, and history of any remediation efforts.  If the DOF approves 
the Oversight Board adopted LRPMP, the Successor Agency can begin disposing of land in 
accordance with the plan.    
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The City Council / Successor Agency needs advocacy services to insure approval of the LRPMP 
which will enable the Successor Agency to develop or dispose of the properties in a manner 
that is consistent with this plan.  Properties that are to be sold must receive the approval of 
the Oversight Board and DOF unless such sale is identified in the LRPMP. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The City’s General Fund and the Successor Agency’s administrative budget may be impacted 

Page 174 of 237



by $24,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
Professional Services Agreement Between Joe A. Gonsalves & Son and City of Cudahy / Successor 
Agency 

Page 175 of 237



Page 176 of 237



Page 177 of 237



Page 178 of 237



Page 179 of 237



Page 180 of 237



Page 181 of 237



Page 182 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  December 14, 2015  

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Jessica Balandran, Senior Administrative Analyst 

Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Affirming the City’s 
Commitment to Gender Pay Equality 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to adopt a proposed resolution affirming the City’s commitment 
to gender pay equality. 
 
 

BACKGROUND 

1. In 1949, the California Equal Pay Act was passed, giving employees the right to equal pay 
for equal work. 
 

2. On October 6, 2015, California Governor Jerry Brown signed the California Fair Pay Act 
into law. 

 
3. On November 23, 2015, the City Council voted to bring forth a resolution for adoption in 

support of the City’s commitment to gender pay equality.    
 
 
ANALYSIS 

The City Council recognizes that gender pay equality requires providing equal rights, 
responsibilities, and opportunities to all people no matter their sex or gender, and it is an 
issue of fundamental human rights. Thus, the City Council has voted to bring forth a 
resolution expressing the City’s commitment to gender pay pay equality.  
 
In 2014, a woman working full time year round earned an average of 84 cents to every dollar 
a man earned. This wage gap extends across almost all occupations reporting in California. 

 

Item Number 

10J 

Page 183 of 237



The gap is far worse for women of color. Specifically, Latina women in California make only 44 
cents for every dollar a white male makes, the biggest gap for Latina women in the nation. 
The persistent disparity in earnings has a significant impact on the economic security and 
welfare of millions of working women and their families.  
 
Collectively, women working full time in California lose approximately $33,650,294,544 each 
year due to the gender wage gap. The wage gap contributes to the higher statewide poverty 
rate among women, which stands at 18 percent, compared to approximately 15 percent for 
men. The poverty rate is even higher for women of color and single women living with 
children. 
 
Though California has prohibited gender-based wage discrimination since 1949, it recently 
enacted the Fair Pay Act to strengthen the protections for gender equality in wages. The 
legislation provides in part that “an employer shall not pay any of its employees at wage rates 
less than the rates paid to employees of the opposite sex for substantially similar work, when 
viewed as a composite of skill, effort, and responsibility, and performed under similar working 
conditions.” 
  
All data was gathered from the principles adopted by the mayors at the 2014 U.S. Conference 
of Mayors, based on the U.N. Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination 
Against Women (CEDAW). 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Women and girls make up approximately 51% of Cudahy’s population, and by adopting a 
resolution in support of gender pay equality, Cudahy demonstrates its commitment to and 
awareness of the need to eliminate discrimination against women and achieve gender pay 
equality in the areas of political participation and representation, income and earnings, and 
public and personal safety. 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
There is no cost associated with the adoption of this resolution. 
 

 
ATTACHMENT 
 

Proposed Resolution Affirming the City of Cudahy’s Commitment to Gender Pay equality 

Page 184 of 237



RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CUDAHY, CALIFORNIA AFFIRMING THE CITY OF CUDAHY’S 

COMMITMENT TO GENDER PAY EQUALITY 

 
WHEREAS, gender-based disparities persist in employment throughout the City of 

Cudahy; 
 
WHEREAS, in 2014, the gender wage gap in California stood at 16 cents on the dollar. 

A woman working full time year round earned an average of 84 cents to every dollar a man 
earned. This wage gap extends across almost all occupations reporting in California. This gap is 
far worse for women of color; Latina women in California make only 44 cents for every dollar a 
white male makes, the biggest gap for Latina women in the nation; 
 

WHEREAS, the persistent disparity in earnings has a significant impact on the economic 
security and welfare of millions of working women and their families. Collectively, women 
working full time in California lose approximately $33,650,294,544 each year due to the gender 
wage gap. The wage gap contributes to the higher statewide poverty rate among women, which 
stands at 18 percent, compared to approximately 15 percent for men, and the poverty rate is 
even higher for women of color and single women living with children; 
 

WHEREAS, though California has prohibited gender-based wage discrimination since 
1949, it recently enacted the Fair Pay Act to strengthen the protections for gender equity in 
wages. The legislation provides that “an employer shall not pay any of its employees at wage 
rates less than the rates paid to employees of the opposite sex for substantially similar work, 
when viewed as a composite of skill, effort, and responsibility, and performed under similar 
working conditions,” and further limited the exceptions to this rule; 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that gender pay equality requires recognizing 

and providing equal rights, responsibilities, and opportunities to all people no matter their sex or 
gender. Gender pay equality is not an issue relevant to just one gender or sex; rather, it is an 
issue of fundamental human rights; 

 
WHEREAS, women and girls make up approximately 51% of Cudahy’s population, and 

by adopting a resolution in support of gender pay equality, Cudahy demonstrates its 
commitment to and awareness of the need to eliminate discrimination against women and 
achieve gender pay equality in the areas of political participation and representation, income 
and earnings, and public and personal safety; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:  
 

1.  Recitals.  The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and incorporated herein 
and made a part hereof by this reference. 

 
2.  The City Council of the City of Cudahy expresses its support for the elimination of 

discrimination against women and the achievement of gender pay equality in the areas of 
political participation and representation, income and earnings, and public and personal safety. 

Page 185 of 237



 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Cudahy at its 

regular meeting on this 14th day of December, 2015. 
 
 
 
       
 Cristian Markovich 
 Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
 
      
Laura Valdivia,    
Interim City Clerk 
 

Page 186 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:  December 14, 2015  

To:  Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:  Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
  By:  Jennifer Hernandez, Acting Human Resources Specialist 

Subject: Consideration to Approve a First Amendment to the Legal Services Agreement 
with Liebert Cassidy Whitmore (LCW) for Employment Matters and Labor 
Negotiations 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

The City Council is requested to approve a First Amendment to the Legal Services Agreement 
with Liebert Cassidy Whitmore (LCW) for employment related matters and labor 
negotiations.   
 
 
BACKGROUND 

1. On April 2, 2015, the City Manager and City Attorney agreed that it would be in the best 
interest of the City to refer employment law matters and labor negotiations to outside 
neutral counsel. This discussion centered on other pressing matters that required the 
immediate attention of the Olivarez Madruga team, and the understanding that 
employment law is a broad and complex area of practice impacting every aspect of the 
employer and employee relationship.   
 

2. On April 21, 2015, the City Council approved a Legal Services Agreement with LCW for 
the amount of $25,000. LCW provides the subject matter expertise in labor relations, 
labor negotiations, retirement benefits, impasse resolution, Fair Labor Standards Act 
compliance, unfair labor practices, and other employment related matters and would 
serve the City well in these areas.   
 

3. On June 30, 2015, the City’s Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Cudahy 
Miscellaneous Employees’ Association (CMEA) expired, and it is imperative that the City 
work closely with outside neutral counsel to closely examine the terms of the current 

 

Item Number 

10K 

Page 187 of 237



MOU and future unfunded liability provisions, as well as compliance with the Public 
Employee Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) as it relates to CalPERS and City contributions, 
and related matters. Over the last 30 years LCW has negotiated hundreds of 
memoranda of understanding with all varieties of employee groups and have negotiated 
virtually every issue within the scope of bargaining including wages, hours, health and 
retirement benefits, leaves and discipline. 
 

4. Between May and August 2015, several meetings took place between the City’s Labor 
Negotiation team, which consists of Special Legal Counsel, Oliver Yee, Human Resources 
Consultant, Rhonda Strout, and the CMEA to discuss the terms of the MOU. During this 
period, City Labor Negotiators also reported out progress and received direction from 
the City Council during Closed Session. 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Over the past several months, the City’s labor negotiation team engaged in several meetings 
with the CMEA bargaining unit to establish an MOU, which is more in line with current labor 
practices and the labor market, while preserving the interests of the membership. 
 
Although, the City is very close to finalizing the MOU between the City of Cudahy and CMEA, 
due to unforeseen delays resulting from lack of Council quorum during Closed Session section 
of meetings and initial difficulties reaching tentative agreements, which are crucial to the 
bargaining process, the City has exceeded the Legal Services Agreement amount of $25,000 
with LCW. Moving forward, if further legal services are needed from LCW, budget 
appropriations would be necessary.  
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The City Council is requested to approve the proposed First Amendment to the Legal Services 
Agreement with LCW.  Should the City Council determine not to move forward with a contract 
amendment, the City would indefinitely owe LCW an outstanding balance of approximately 
$12,000. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Additional costs resulting from this proposed First Amendment to the Legal Services Agreement 

Page 188 of 237



are anticipated to be approximately $12,000 above the original contract amount of $25,000, 
resulting in an overall cost of $37,000. Cost overages resulting from this contract amendment 
will be covered by shifting funds from pre-appropriated Personnel Department items found in 
the Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16 City Budget.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Legal Services Agreement with Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 
B. Proposed First Amendment to the Legal Services Agreement 
C. T. Oliver Lee, Associate - Correspondence 

Page 189 of 237



Page 190 of 237



Page 191 of 237



Page 192 of 237



Page 193 of 237



Page 194 of 237



FIRST AMENDMENT 
 

LEGAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 This First Amendment to Legal Services Agreement is entered into between the 

law firm of LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE, A Professional Corporation 

(“Attorney”), and the CITY OF CUDAHY, A Municipal Corporation (“City”). 

1. Conditions 

 This Agreement will not take effect, and Attorney will have no obligation to 

provide services, until City returns a properly signed and executed copy of this 

Agreement. 

2. Attorney’s Services 

 Attorney agrees to provide City with consulting, representational and legal 

services pertaining to employment relations matters, including representation in 

negotiations and in administrative and court proceedings, as requested by City or 

otherwise required by law.   

3. Fees, Costs, Expenses 

 City agrees to pay Attorney the sums billed monthly for time spent by Attorney in 

providing the services, including reasonable travel time.  Based on the foregoing, 

Attorney’s total compensation for the Work under this Agreement may not exceed the 

sum of FORTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($40,000.00). 

 The current range of hourly rates for Attorney time is from One Hundred Ninety 

to Three Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars ($190.00 - $325.00), and from Seventy-Five to 

One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($75.00 - $150.00) for time of paraprofessional and litigation 

support staff.  Attorney reviews its hourly rates on an annual basis and, if appropriate, 

Page 195 of 237



adjusts them effective July 1.  Attorney will provide the City with written notification of 

any adjustment in the range of rates.  Attorneys, paraprofessional and litigation support 

staff bill their time in minimum units of one-tenth of an hour.   

 City agrees to reimburse Attorney for necessary costs and expenses incurred by 

Attorney on behalf of City.  Attorney bills photocopying charges at Fifteen Cents ($0.15) 

per page and facsimile charges at Fifty Cents ($0.50) per page.  A Public Agency Fee 

Schedule is attached to this Agreement. 

 Payment by City against monthly billings is due upon receipt of statements, and is 

considered delinquent if payment is not received within thirty (30) days of the date of the 

invoice. 

 The California Business & Professions Code requires us to inform you whether 

we maintain errors and omissions insurance coverage applicable to the services to be 

rendered to you.  We hereby confirm that the firm does maintain such insurance 

coverage. 

4. Arbitration of Professional Liability or Other Claims 

 Disputes.  If a dispute between City and Attorney arises over fees charged for 

services, the controversy will be submitted to binding arbitration in accordance with the 

rules of the California State Bar Fee Arbitration Program, set forth in California Business 

and Professions Code, sections 6200 through 6206.  The arbitrator or arbitration panel 

shall have the authority to award to the prevailing party attorneys’ fees, costs and interest 

incurred.  Any arbitration award may be served by mail upon either side and personal 

service shall not be required. 

Page 196 of 237



 If a dispute arises between City and Attorney over any other aspect of the 

attorney-client relationship, including, without limitation, a claim for breach of 

professional duty, that dispute will also be resolved by arbitration.  It is understood that 

any dispute as to any alleged breach of professional duty (that is, as to whether any legal 

services rendered under this agreement were allegedly unnecessary, unauthorized, 

omitted entirely, or were improperly, negligently or incompetently rendered) will be 

determined by submission to arbitration as provided by California law, and not by a 

lawsuit or resort to court process except as California law provides for judicial review of 

arbitration proceedings.  Both parties to this agreement, by entering into it, are giving 

up their constitutional right to have any such dispute decided in a court of law 

before a jury, and instead are accepting the use of arbitration.  Each party is to bear 

its own attorney’s fees and costs. 

5. File Retention 

 After our services conclude, Attorney will, upon City’s request, deliver the file for 

the matter to City, along with any funds or property of City’s in our possession.  If City 

requests the file for the matter, Attorney will retain a copy of the file at the City’s 

expense.  If City does not request the file for this matter, we will retain it for a period of 

seven (7) years after this matter is closed.  If City does not request delivery of the file for 

this matter before the end of the seven (7) year period, we will have no further obligation 

to retain the file and may, at our discretion, destroy it without further notice to City.  At 

any point during the seven (7) year period, City may request delivery of the file. 

6. Assignment 

 This Agreement is not assignable without the written consent of City. 

Page 197 of 237



7. Independent Contractor 

 It is understood and agreed that Attorney, while engaged in performing the terms 

of this Agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of City. 

 

8. Authority 

 The signators to this Agreement represent that they hold the positions set forth 

below their signatures, and that they are authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf 

of their respective parties and to bind their respective parties hereto. 

9. Term 

 This Agreement is effective November 5, 2015, ongoing and may be modified by 

mutual agreement of the parties.  This agreement shall be terminable by either party upon 

thirty (30) days written notice.   

 
CITY OF CUDAHY: 
 
 
 
By:       
      Jose E. Pulido, City Manager 
 
Date:        
      
 
 

 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE, A 
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION: 
 
 
By:        
       
 
Date:        
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:       
      Laura Valdivia, Interim City Clerk 
 
Date:        
 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:       
      Isabel Birrueta, Assistant City Attorney 
 
Date:        

 
 

Page 198 of 237



 
 
 
I. PUBLIC AGENCY FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 
 

Hourly Rates (As of Agreement Effective Date) 
 

 
 
 Partners      $325.00 
 
 
 

Of Counsel      $285.00 
 

 
 
 Associates      $190.00 - $265.00 
 
 
 
 Paraprofessionals & Litigation Support   $75.00 - $150.00 
 
 
 
   
 
II. COST SCHEDULE 

 
 
 
 1.  Photocopies     $0.15 per copy 
 
 
 
 2.  Facsimile Transmittal    $0.50 per page  

Page 199 of 237



Page 200 of 237



Page 201 of 237



 
 

Blank Page 

Page 202 of 237



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 

Date:   December 14, 2015 

To:   Honorable Mayor/Chair and City Council/Agency Members 

From:   Jose E. Pulido, City Manager/Executive Director 
By:   Michael Allen, Acting Community Development Director 
         Maria Torres, CDBG Coordinator 

Subject:  Consideration to Adopt a Proposed Resolution Approving Projects/Programs 
for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding During the Fiscal 
Year 2016-17 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council is requested to: 
 
1. Conduct a public hearing; 

2. Consider all public testimony; and 

3. Adopt a proposed resolution, approving Projects/Programs for Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Funding during the Fiscal Year (FY) 2016-17. 

  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. On October 14, 2015, City staff (i.e., City Manager Jose E. Pulido, Acting Community 

Development Director Michael Allen, and CDBG Coordinator Maria Torres) reviewed the 
existing and potential projects to be funded by CDBG. 
 

2. On October 19, 2015, City staff received word from CDBG that the City had successfully met 
our drawdown requirement before September 30, 2015, avoiding recapture of over 
$500,000. 

 
3. In November 2015, CDBG released the amount of allocated funds to the City for FY 2016-17.  

 
  

 

Item Number 

11A 

Page 203 of 237



4. On November 10, 2015, City Staff reviewed the proposed projects with the City’s CDBG 
Program Manager and prepared the recommendation list of projects/programs/activities. 

 
5. On November 30, 2015, a public hearing notice soliciting suggestions and recommendations 

from the public for the use of CDBG funds for FY 2016-17 was published in the Press 
Telegram and posted at all public buildings within the City.  

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The Federal Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is responsible for 
administering the CDBG program. In order to receive funds, a city must submit an annual 
application to HUD. In the case of Cudahy, the City submits its application through the Los 
Angeles County Community Development Commission (CDC). The primary national objectives 
of the CDBG program are to undertake activities that benefit low and moderate-income 
persons, and/or eliminate slum and blight conditions. The program requires a minimum of 70 
percent of the program funds be expended on activities that benefit low and moderate income 
persons. 
 
Annually, the City receives an allocation of funds from the CDC of approximately $320,000. The 
allocation is determined by the City’s population residing in eligible census tracts (residents 
who earn 80% of the Los Angeles County median family income). Historically, the City of Cudahy 
has allocated these funds towards housing rehabilitation programs, community preservation, 
family counseling services, food distribution, business assistance, and parks projects. During FY 
2015-16, the City was at risk of losing more than $500,000 as a result of not meeting the annual 
drawdown requirement (due to delayed program start dates in previous fiscal years).  As of 
September 2015, the City remedied this drawdown requirement problem by keeping its current 
CDBG projects on schedule (i.e., Lugo Park Renovation Project). 
 
Prior to each new fiscal year, the CDC notifies the City of its final CDBG allocation for the 
coming fiscal year. At this time, the CDC also distributes the forms that the City must submit to 
receive these CDBG funds and conduct training sessions on the preparation of these forms. 
 
The purpose of this public hearing is to review the City’s current use of CDBG funds and, more 
importantly, to determine the projects for the coming fiscal year.  
 
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES FOR FUNDING 
The types of activities that can be funded under the program, provided that they meet one of 
the national objectives stated above, include the following: 
 

Page 204 of 237



• Land acquisition and disposition; 
• Development of, and improvements to, public facilities; 
• Street and other infrastructure improvements; 
• Demolition and clearance of property improvements; 
• Code enforcement; 
• Public service activities; 
• Housing and commercial rehabilitation; 
• Economic development activities; and 
• Program administration. 

 
INELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 
On the other hand, there are certain activities or projects for which CDBG funds cannot be 
used. 
 
These ineligible activities include: 

• Construction of city halls, county administrative buildings, or other facilities in which the 
legislative, judicial, or general administrative affairs of the government are conducted; 

• Purchase of equipment, unless otherwise required for program purposes; 
• Operating and maintenance expenses; 
• General government expenses; and 
• Political activities. 

 
The CDC has notified the City that its preliminary CDBG allocation for FY 2016-17 is 
approximately $323,861. In considering potential projects/programs for funding, up to 15 
percent of the coming year’s allocation, or $48,579.15, can be budgeted for public services. 
Administrative delivery services for the Housing Rehabilitation Programs are not to exceed 20 
percent of their recommended budgets. 
 
FY 2016-17 PROPOSED PROJECTS 
The proposed CDBG Projects/Budgets for the FY 2016-17 Program Year are as follows: 
 
ONGOING PROGRAMS/PROJECTS (funded in previous years) 
 

• Clara Street Park Food Distribution Program 

Activity Summary - This continuing program will provide a monthly food distribution for 
Cudahy residents. Once a month, households will receive various food products. The 
food will be distributed at Clara Street Park. This program will provide food supplies to 
approximately 300 clients (families) per month and will service over 800 clients over the 
course of the fiscal year.  

Page 205 of 237



 
Activity Accomplishments for FY 2015-16: 2,200 units (bags of groceries) 
 

• Business Assistance Program 

Activity Summary - This continuing project will provide funds to assist 28 existing/ 
potential new business owners in retaining, expanding, or opening a business in the City 
of Cudahy. The program offers assistance with completing applications for permits and 
business licenses and will provide technical assistance through one-on-one 
consultations, trainings, and workshops to address the needs of the City's business 
community. Topics will include, but not be limited to, business expansion plans, how to 
market your business, how to obtain a business loan, and how to strengthen your 
business. These services will be delivered to the business community by City staff, long-
time business owners, and commercial bank personnel. 

 
Activity Accomplishments for FY 2015-16: 28 Clients 

 
• Code Enforcement Program 

This continuing project aids in arresting the decline of primarily residential and 
neighborhood commercial businesses located in the following designated areas: Census 
Tracts 5343.01, 5343.02, 5343.03, 5344.03, 5344.04, 5344.05, and 5344.06, which have 
been deemed deteriorating or deteriorated. This program together with CDBG-funded 
City program Single-Unit Housing Rehabilitation is expected to prevent the decline of 
the area.  

 
The following are the most common violations that will be addressed through this CDBG 
funded activity: prohibited conditions, unsightliness, and violation of building code. 

 
• Single Unit Housing Rehabilitation Program 

This is a continuing project, offering grants (up to $10,000 each for single-family homes 
and up to $8,000 for mobile homes), below market interest rate loans (no maximum 
amount, interest rates range from 3% to 6%), deferred loans (up to $3,000 each, 
interest rates 0% to 3%), and emergency grants (up to $1,500). Programs may be used in 
combination. These programs are designed to assist existing low-to-moderate income 
households with the repair or rehabilitation of owner-occupied units. Mobile home 
units affixed to the foundation and part of the City's permanent housing stock will only 
be assisted through the grant program. 

 
Activity Accomplishments for FY 2015-16: 4 Rehabilitated Housing Units 

 

Page 206 of 237



NEW PROJECTS 
 

• Senior Services 

Seniors are provided a daily lunch and activities at Clara Park facility. Clara Park staff 
provides supervision and recreational activities for the seniors. Funds will be used to 
cover staff costs to implement the program. 
 

The City Council has a limited time frame to approve the proposed CDBG projects. Projects 
submitted to the Los Angeles County Community Development Commission's CDBG Grants 
Management Unit by the end of January 2016 generally run significant risk of not receiving a 
July 1, 2015 program start date. Not receiving a July 1, 2015 start date can delay program start 
dates, which could temporarily suspend project services, or potentially impact the City's budget 
if the City chooses to continue to operate the programs, which would be funded by the City’s 
General Fund. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
With the expected completion of the Lugo Park Renovation Project, the City will meet our FY 
2015-16 drawdown requirement, from a balance of more than $500,000 to $2,000. Approval of 
the proposed resolution will ensure an approximate start date of July 1, 2015 for FY 2016-17 
programs.  A July 1, 2015 start date will allow the City to properly charge program costs to 
CDBG, enabling the City to stay on track to meet our FY 2016-17 drawdown requirements. 
 
Postponement of approval will delay the City’s program start dates, as well as our ability to 
charge program costs to CDBG. As a result, the General Fund would be expended to continue 
any on-going CDBG programs (i.e., food distribution, business assistance, senior services, and 
code enforcement). Additionally, a late start date may result in the inability to meet the 
drawdown requirement of FY 2016-17.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
At the moment, is it estimated that the CDBG funding allocation for FY 2016-17 will be 
approximately $323,861. Additionally, the unallocated funding balance remaining from the FY 
2015-16 program year is currently $2,000.74.  As a result, the City has approximately 
$325,861.74 in Federal funding to put towards CDBG Projects. 
 
  

Page 207 of 237



The proposed allocation of CDBG funds is as follows: 
 

Single Unit Housing Rehabilitation   $  132,456 
Business Assistance Program    $    23,403 
Code Enforcement     $  120,391 
Clara Park Senior Services    $    21,000 
Clara Street Park Food Distribution   $    28,611              

Total   $  325,861  
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. CDBG Income Guidelines 
B. CDBG HUD Codes and Definitions 
C. Proposed Resolution Approving Projects/Programs for Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Funding During the Fiscal Year 2016-17 

Page 208 of 237



Page 209 of 237

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



Page 210 of 237



          
 
 

Los Angeles County Community Development Commission 
Community Development Block Grant 

 
Definitions of HUD Codes 

 
 
The Los Angeles County Community Development Commission, Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Division is providing this document for your 
use when working with CDBG Programs.  These codes are used to describe the 
nature of the activity being funded by HUD.  The code descriptions are written in 
easy-to-understand language and contain specific examples. 
 

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION 
01  Acquisition 
02  Disposition 

 
PUBLIC FACILITIES AND IMPROVEMENTS 

03  Public Facilities and Improvements 
03A  Senior Centers 
03B  Centers for the Disabled/Handicapped 
03C  Homeless Facilities (Not Operating Costs) 
03D  Youth Centers/Facilities 
03E  Neighborhood Facilities 
03F  Parks, Recreational Facilities 
03G  Parking Facilities 
03H  Solid Waste Disposal Facilities 
03I  Flood and Drainage Facilities 
03J  Water/Sewer Improvements 
03K  Street Improvements 
03L  Sidewalks 
03M  Child Care Centers/Facilities for Children 
03N  Tree Planting 
03O  Fire Station/Equipment 
03P  Health Facilities 
03Q  Abused and Neglected Children’s Facilities 
03R  Asbestos Removal 
03S  Facilities for AIDS Patients (Not Operating Costs) 
03T  Operating Costs of Homeless/AIDS Patients Programs 

 

Page 211 of 237

clerk
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



PUBLIC SERVICES 
 

05  Public Services (General) 
05A  Senior Services 
05B  Services for the Disabled 
05C  Legal Services 
05D  Youth Services 
05E  Transportation Services 
05F  Substance Abuse Services 
05G  Battered and Abused Spouses 
05H  Employment Training 
05I  Crime Awareness/Prevention 
05J  Fair Housing Activities 
05K  Tenant/Landlord Counseling 
05L  Child Care Services 
05M  Health Services 
05N  Abused and Neglected Children 
05O  Mental Health Services 
05P  Screen for Lead-Based Paint/Lead Hazards Poisoning 
05Q  Subsistence Payments 
05R  Homeownership Assistance (Not Direct) 
05S  Rental Housing Subsidies (HOME Tenant-Based Rental 

Assistance) 
05T  Security Deposits 
03T  Operating Costs of Homeless/AlDS Patients Programs 
 

HOUSING 
12  Construction of Housing 
13  Direct Homeownership Assistance 
14A  Rehabilitation: Single-Unit Residential 
14B  Rehabilitation: Multi-Unit Residential 
14C  Public Housing Modernization 
14D  Rehabilitation: Other Publicly Owned Residential Buildings 
14F  Energy Efficient Improvements 
14G  Acquisition For Rehabilitation 
14H  Rehabilitation Administration 
14I  Lead-Based Paint/Lead Hazard Test/Abatement 
16A  Residential Historic Preservation 
19A  This is not a valid code 
19B  This is not a valid code 

Page 212 of 237



COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL IMPROVEMENTS BY GRANTEE OR 
NON-PROFIT 

17A  Commercial/lndustrial Land Acquisition/Disposition 
17B  Commercial/lndustrial Infrastructure Development 
17C  Commercial/lndustrial Building Acquisition, Construction, 
         Rehabilitation 
17D  Other Commercial/Industrial Improvements 

 
DIRECT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE TO PRIVATE 
FOR-PROFITS 

14E  Rehabilitation: Publicly or Privately Owned 
Commercial/lndustrial 

18A  ED Direct: Direct Financial Assistance to For-Profit Business 
18B  ED Direct: Technical Assistance 
18C  Micro-Enterprise Assistance 

 
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND PLANNING COSTS 

20  Planning 
21A  General Program Administration 
21B  Indirect Costs 
21C  Public Information 
21D  Fair Housing Activities 
21E  Submissions or Applications for Federal Programs 
21F  This is not a valid code 
21G  This is not a valid code 
21H  HOME Administration/Planning Costs of PJs 
21I  HOME CHDO Operating Expenses 

 
OTHER 

04  Clearance and Demolition 
04A  Clean-up of Contaminated Sites/Brownfields 
06  Interim Assistance 
07  Urban Renewal Completion 
08  Relocation 
09  Loss of Rental Income 
10  Removal of Architectural Barriers 
11  Privately Owned Utilities 
15  Code Enforcement 
16B  Non-Residential Historic Preservation 
19C  CDBG Non-Profit Organization Capacity Building 
19D  CDBG Assistance to Institutions of Higher Education 
19E  CDBG Operation and Repair of Foreclosed Property 
19F  Repayments of Section 108 Loan Principal 
22  Unprogrammed Funds 

 
 

Page 213 of 237



 
Acquisition and Disposition 

 
 
01 Acquisition 

An activity should be coded as Acquisition if CDBG funds will be 
used only for the acquisition of property for a public purpose. This 
code is frequently used for the acquisition of property on which a 
public facility or public improvement will be constructed using other 
funds, or for the acquisition of property on which housing will be 
constructed using other funds. (NOTE: Sometimes it will be 
necessary to include demolition and relocation expenditures under 
this category because the grantee will not be able to distinguish 
these funds from those used for acquisition.) 
 
For example, if land is acquired for the development of a senior 
center and CDBG funds will be used only for acquisition of the 
property, code the activity as 01. If the property will be acquired and 
CDBG funds will be used for constructing or rehabilitating a senior 
center, code the activity 03A, Senior Centers, rather than 01. 
However, if grantees group acquisition with relocation or 
disposition, the activity can be coded as acquisition (as this is 
usually the most expensive portion). 
 
When CDBG funds are used to acquire housing that will also be 
rehabilitated with CDBG funds, code 14G, Acquisition for 
Rehabilitation, should be used. Use code 17A, 
Commercial/lndustrial Land Acquisition Disposition, if the grantee or 
subrecipient will acquire land, clear structures, or package land for 
the purpose of creating an industrial park or encouraging 
commercial or industrial redevelopment. 
 
For the HOME program, use this code for the acquisition of a 
structure that does not require rehabilitation and that will be used to 
provide affordable rental housing or Homeownership units. Use 
code 14G for the acquisition of a structure that requires 
rehabilitation and will be used to provide affordable rental housing 
or Homeownership units. Use code 12 for the acquisition of land on 
which new housing will be constructed using HOME funds. 
 
ESG funds cannot be used for acquisition activities. 

Page 214 of 237



02  Disposition  
Disposition can occur through the sale, lease, or donation of 
property acquired with CDBG funds or under urban renewal. 
Communities ordinarily use this term to describe costs that 
are incidental to disposing or transferring real property 
acquired with CDBG funds, and to describe the costs of 
temporarily maintaining properties pending disposition (for 
example, legal service, financial service, appraisal survey, 
and transfer of ownership costs). 

Page 215 of 237



Public Facilities and Improvements 
 
 
CDBG, HOPWA, and ESG funds may be used by the grantee or other public or 
private non-profit entities for public facilities and improvements. 
 
The matrix codes listed below should be used when the grantee includes 
the cost of acquiring real property with the cost of construction or 
rehabilitation of a public facility or improvement. (If CDBG funds will only be 
used to acquire property for a public facility, use the Acquisition code, 01.) 
Examples of public facilities include senior, handicapped, youth, or neighborhood 
centers, shelters for the homeless, and child care centers. Infrastructure 
improvements include street, sidewalk, water, sewer, flood, and drainage 
improvements. 
 
Finally, commercial and industrial improvements undertaken by the grantee or a 
subrecipient for economic development purposes should be coded 17A, 17B, 
17C, or 17D, as appropriate. 
 
 
03 Public Facilities and Improvements  

This is the general code for public facilities. This code should not 
be used unless the activity does not fall under a more specific 
category. 

 
03A  Senior Centers  

Use code 03A for the construction or rehabilitation of senior citizen 
centers. A facility described as serving "senior citizens and the 
disabled" may be classified under this category; however, if the 
facility is intended primarily to serve persons with disabilities, the 
facility should be classified under 03B, Centers for the 
Disabled/Handicapped. (If the activity involves rehabilitation of a 
building to provide permanent housing for the elderly, the activity 
should be coded in the 14 series, Housing; if the activity involves 
new construction of such permanent housing, it should be classified 
under code 12, Construction of Housing.) 

 
03B  Centers for the Disabled/Handicapped  

Use code 03B for construction or rehabilitation of group homes or 
centers for the disabled. (As noted above, if the activity involves 
rehabilitation of a building to provide permanent housing, it should 
be coded in the 14 series, Housing; if the activity involves new 
construction of such permanent housing, it should be classified 
under code 12, Construction of Housing.) 

Page 216 of 237



 
03C  Homeless Facilities (Not Operating Costs)  

Use code 03C for construction, conversion, renovation, or 
rehabilitation of shelters for the homeless, including shelters for 
battered spouses. This code should also be used for transitional 
housing and SROs (single room occupancy units) for the homeless 
that are funded by CDBG. 

 
NOTE: Transitional housing for homeless persons should be coded 
03C for CDBG-funded activities. However, for activities funded by 
other programs, transitional housing and SROs may be coded 
under the 14 series, as housing rehabilitation. ESG funds may not 
be used for new construction. 
 
Centers for abused children should be coded under 03Q, Abused 
and Neglected Children's Facilities. 

 
03D  Youth Centers/Facilities  

This refers to facilities that will be used primarily to provide services 
for teenage youth (ages 13 to 19). This includes playground and 
recreation facilities that are a part of youth center Facilities. 
Facilities for children ages 0 to 12 should be coded as 03M, Child 
Care Centers/ Facilities for Children. 

 
03E  Neighborhood Facilities 

Use code 03E for structures that will be used for social services or 
for multiple purposes, including recreation, and that are principally 
designed to serve a neighborhood. Such facilities may include 
libraries and public schools. 

 
03F  Parks, Recreational Facilities 

Use code 03F whenever the activity involves developing an open 
space area or a facility to be used principally for recreation 
purposes. 

 
03G  Parking Facilities  

This code should be used for off-street parking lots and parking 
garages. If on-street parking is included as part of a street 
improvement program, the activity should be recorded as street 
improvements, unless the proposed description of the activity or the 
accomplishments clearly indicate that the purpose of the activity will 
be primarily to improve parking. If a parking addition/improvement 
is the major component of improvements made to a neighborhood 
facility or other facility under the 03 series, the activity should be 
classified under 03G as a parking improvement. 

Page 217 of 237



03H  Solid Waste Disposal Facilities  
This code should be used for any activity that describes the 
construction and/or rehabilitation of solid waste disposal facilities. 

 
031  Flood and Drainage Facilities  

This code should be used for those activities that the grantee 
indicates will be used for flood control or irrigation (e.g., retention 
ponds or catch basins). This code does not include storm sewers, 
street drains, or storm drains. When in doubt, use 03J for 
water/sewer improvements and 03K for street drains and storm 
drains. 

 
03J  Water/Sewer Improvements  

Water/Sewer Improvements include installation or replacement of 
water lines, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, and fire hydrants. All 
water/sewer projects undertaken with only minor or no street 
improvements should be coded as 03J. Repaving of streets is 
generally required as part of the installation of water/sewer 
improvements. However, if the activity is primarily for the purpose 
of street improvements but involves some water/sewer 
improvements, the activity should be coded as 03K, Street 
Improvements. For example, an activity that involves paving 6 
blocks of Main Street and installing 100 feet of new water lines in 
one of those blocks should be classified under 03K. Activities 
classified under the 03J code generally should not include flood 
and drainage facilities; flood and drainage facilities should be 
classified under 031. 

 
03K  Street Improvements 

A street improvement project may include street drains, storm 
drains, curb and gutter work, tunnels, bridges, and the installation 
of streetlights or signs. If sidewalks and trees will be installed as a 
peripheral part of a street improvement, the activity should still be 
coded as Street Improvements. Street improvements that include 
landscaping, streetlights, and/or street signs (commonly referred to 
as "streetscapes") should also be coded 03K. 
 
See also the discussion above in 03J, Water/Sewer Improvements. 

 
03L  Sidewalks  

Use this code when an activity is for the purpose of sidewalk 
improvements. Sidewalk improvements that include the installation 
of trash receptacles, trees, benches, and lighting should also be 
coded under 03L. 

Page 218 of 237



03M  Child Care Centers/Facilities for Children 
Examples of these include daycare centers and Head Start 
pre-school centers. 

 
03N  Tree Planting  

Activities that are limited to tree planting (sometimes referred to as 
"beautification") should be coded under 03N. As noted under 03K 
and 03L, tree planting included as part of a streetscape activity 
should be coded 03K, and tree planting included as part of 
sidewalks should be coded 03L. 

 
03O Fire Station/Equipment  

In addition to the construction or rehabilitation of a fire station, this 
category includes the purchase of fire trucks, ambulances, and 
rescue equipment. 

 
03P  Health Facilities  

This code includes both physical and mental health facilities. If the 
facility is more accurately classified under another category, such 
as one for Abused and Neglected Children (03Q), it should be 
classified as such. 

 
03Q  Abused and Neglected Children's Facilities  

Use this code when the activity includes daycare, treatment, or 
temporary housing for abused and neglected children. 

 
03R  Asbestos Removal 

Use this code when the primary goal of the improvement to any 
public facility is to remove asbestos. 

 
03S  Facilities for AIDS Patients (Not Operating Costs)  

Construction or rehabilitation of buildings for treatment or temporary 
housing for people who are HIV positive or who have AIDS. If the 
facility is for AIDS education and prevention, the facility should be 
categorized under Health Facilities (03P). 

 
03T  Operating Costs of Homeless/AIDS Patients Programs  

Use this code for operating expenses of ESG-funded emergency 
shelters. This code includes all costs associated with the operation 
of facilities (such as utilities, maintenance, and insurance) for 
homeless persons and/or AIDS patients. (NOTE: If this code is 
used for a CDBG-assisted activity, the activity will be included in 
the public service calculation, because the use of CDBG funds to 
pay for the cost of operating homeless/AIDS patients programs is a 
public service.) 

 

Page 219 of 237



           Public Services 
 
 
Examples of public services activities include CDBG-assisted programs for drug 
and alcohol counseling, meals-on-wheels, daycare, and Head Start; ESG-funded 
essential services; and HOPWA-funded supportive services. Care should be 
taken to distinguish a service from construction or rehabilitation of a facility where 
a service is being provided. For example, the construction or rehabilitation of a 
senior center is coded as 03A, but the funding of services provided at a facility for 
senior citizens is coded as 05A. Rental of a facility for a service is considered 
part of delivery of the service and should be coded as a public service. Public 
service activities also include the cost of operating and maintaining that portion of 
a facility in which a service is located. 
 
Generally, if the activity is restricted to one client group such as the elderly, use 
the code for that client group; for example, use code 05A for Senior Services. 
Exceptions to this rule occur when considering employment services and 
substance abuse services. A grantee may code an activity such as youth 
employment services as either ODD, Youth Services, or 05H, Employment 
Training. 
 
 
05 Public Services (General) 

Do not use this code unless the activity cannot be classified 
under a more specific activity code. 

 
Public service activities include housing referral and counseling 
services, neighborhood cleanup, Homeownership counseling, food 
distribution (food bank services), health education, or rape 
prevention education.  General or unspecified homeless services, 
including those described as essential or supportive services, may 
also be assigned this activity code. 

 
Use this code for essential services provided by the ESG 
Program, unless a more specific activity code can be assigned. 

 
05A  Senior Services  

Use code 05A for services that will be provided to elderly persons 
(e.g., meals-on-wheels, dial-a-ride). Also use this code for services 
provided for victims of Alzheimer's disease. (Code 05A, Senior 
Services, or 05B, Services for the Disabled, may be used for 
activities that will provide services for both senior citizens and 
persons with disabilities if the activity is not intended primarily to 
serve one group rather than the other.) 

Page 220 of 237



05B  Services for the Disabled 
(Previously Referred to as Handicapped Services)  

Use this code to indicate services for persons with disabilities, 
regardless of age. 

 
05C  Legal Services  

Includes programs that provide legal aid to low- and 
moderate-income persons. If legal services are solely to settle 
tenant/landlord disputes, use code 05K. 

 
05D  Youth Services  

Use code 05D for services for teenagers (ages 13 to 19) that 
include, for example, recreational services limited to teenagers or a 
teen counseling program. If a counseling program is targeted for 
youth but includes counseling for the family as well, it may still be 
classified as a youth service if the focus is on counseling for youth. 
However, use GEL, Child Care Services, for services for children 
up to age 13, and DEN, Abused and Neglected Children, for 
services for abused children. 

 
05E  Transportation Services 

Use this code for transportation services. Transportation services 
for a specific client group should be classified under the code for 
that client group; for example, use code 05A, Senior Services, for 
transportation services for the elderly. 

 
05F  Substance Abuse Services  

Use this code for substance abuse recovery programs as well as 
prevention/education activities. 

 
05G  Battered and Abused Spouses  

Use this code only for programs serving adults or families. If the 
activity is limited to serving abused and neglected children, classify 
the activity under DEN, Abused and Neglected Children. 

 
05H  Employment Training  

Use this code for assistance that increases self-sufficiency. This 
includes literacy, independent living skills, job training, and 
employment service activities. These activities may be 
administered by the grantee or a subrecipient, such as a social 
service agency. When financial assistance will be used to provide 
job training for the creation of a permanent job (or jobs) with a 
specific business (or businesses), use code 18A, Economic 
Development Direct: Direct Financial Assistance to For-Profit 
Business. 

Page 221 of 237



 
05I Crime Awareness/Prevention  

Use this code for any program that promotes these goals, including 
crime prevention education programs and paying for security 
guards. 

 
05J  Fair Housing Activities 

(If CDBG, subject to 15 percent public service cap)  
Use this code for fair housing services (e.g., counseling on housing 
discrimination) when the grantee indicates that a national objective 
will be met. Use code 21 D when a national objective is not stated. 

 
05K  Tenant/Landlord Counseling  

Use this code for counseling provided to help prevent or settle 
disputes that occur between tenants and landlords. 

 
05L Child Care Services  

Use this code for services that will benefit children (generally under 
age 13), including parenting skills classes. However, services 
exclusively for abused and neglected children should be classified 
under DEN, Abused and Neglected Children. 

 
05M  Health Services  

Health services activities include operation of neighborhood clinics, 
post-rape counseling, vermin abatement services (also known as 
"vector control"), and other activities designed to serve the health 
needs of residents. (Exception: Mental health services, which 
should be classified under 050.) 

 
05N  Abused and Neglected Children  

Use this code for daycare or other services exclusively for abused 
and neglected children. 

 
05O Mental Health Services  

Use this code for activities designed to address the mental health 
needs of residents of the community. 

 
05P  Screening for Lead-Based Paint/Lead Hazards Poisoning  

Use this code for activities designed primarily to provide screening 
for not removal of lead-based paint and other lead poisoning 
hazards. 

Page 222 of 237



05Q  Subsistence Payments  
For CDBG, this code should only be used for activities designed to 
provide one-time or short-term (no more than three months) 
emergency grant payments on behalf of an individual or family, 
generally for the purpose of preventing homelessness. Examples 
include use of CDBG funds to prevent the loss of utilities, or 
payment of rent/mortgage to prevent eviction. 

 
For other programs, this code may be used for activities that 
provide tenant subsidies and other payments for expenses other 
than rent or security deposits. If payments are only for rent, code 
as 05S, Rental Housing Subsidies (HOME Tenant-Based Rental 
Assistance). Payments for security deposits should be coded 05T, 
Security Deposits (if HOME, not part of 5 percent Administration 
cap). For ESG, this code should be used for projects that provide a 
range of homeless prevention assistance, including short-term 
subsidies to defray rent and utility arrearages for families, security 
deposits or first month's rent, payments to prevent foreclosure on a 
home, mediation and legal services, and other similar programs. 

 
05R  Homeownership Assistance (Not Direct)  

CDBG: Prior to December 11, 1995, this category should be used 
for Homeownership assistance carried out as a public service. 
Examples include write-down of mortgage costs, payment of 
closing costs, and down payment assistance. When carried out as 
a public service, generally the recipients are not 100 percent low- 
and moderate-income. The national objective should be shown as 
LMH. 
 
Effective December 11, 1995, Homeownership under 05R is 
limited to only homebuyer down payment assistance, and the 
activity must use the LMH (housing) national objective. (NOTE: 
Homeownership assistance provided by the authority of the 
National Affordable Housing Act should be classified under code 
13, Direct Homeownership Assistance.) 

Page 223 of 237



05S  Rental Housing Subsidies (HOME Tenant-Based Rental Assistance)  
Use this code for tenant subsidies exclusively for rental payments, 
including HOME Tenant-Based Rental Assistance. Under CDBG, 
effective December 11, 1995, an activity to provide assistance for 
this purpose must be carried out by a community-based 
development organization (CHDO); prior to December 11, 1995, 
the activity must have been carried out by an eligible subrecipient 
under 570.204. 
 
For ESG, this code should be assigned to homeless prevention 
projects that only provide rental subsidies. 

 
05T  Security Deposits  

For all programs, use this code for activities exclusively providing 
security deposits as a form of tenant subsidy. 

 
03T  Operating Costs of Homeless/AIDS Patients Programs  

If this code is used for a CDBG-assisted activity, the activity will be 
included in the public service calculation, because the use of CDBG 
funds to pay for the cost of operating homeless/AIDS patients 
programs is a public service. (NOTE: If this code will be used for an 
ESG-funded emergency shelter, the activity will be considered a 
public facility/service.) This code includes all costs associated with 
the operation of facilities (such as utilities, maintenance, and 
insurance) for homeless persons and/or AIDS patients. 

Page 224 of 237



Housing 
 
 
Housing includes new construction, rehabilitation, and delivery costs. For CDBG, 
housing rehabilitation includes "handy-person," paint, smoke detector, and lock 
installation programs as well as water and sewer connections to housing. 
(Landscaping may be included as part of a rehabilitation project when performed 
in conjunction with other rehabilitation activities.) Code 14A should be used for 
single-family housing, and 14B should be used for privately owned multi-family 
rehabilitation. 
 
For CDBG, the rehabilitation of facilities or shelters for homeless persons may 
not be coded under the 14 series. The construction or rehabilitation of homeless 
shelters and group homes is not generally considered housing; rather, it is 
considered “Public facilities" under the CDBG program. However, for programs 
designed to provide permanent housing for homeless persons (rather than 
temporary shelter), such rehabilitation may be coded under the 14 series. 
 
For CDBG housing service expenses under 201 K, which is restricted to assisting 
HOME projects, use the codes that apply to the particular HOME projects. 
 
 
12 Construction of Housing  

Use code 12 for the construction of new housing, including the 
acquisition of the land on which the housing will be constructed. 

 
ESG funds may not be used for the construction of housing. 

 
13 Direct Homeownership Assistance 

Under the HOME program, use this code for Homeownership 
assistance. 

 
Under the CDBG program, assistance provided to facilitate 
Homeownership may be in the form of subsidizing interest rates 
and mortgage principal amounts, payment of closing costs and 
down payment assistance for low- and moderate-income 
homebuyers, acquiring guarantees for mortgage financing from 
private lenders, and financing the acquisition by low- and 
moderate-income persons of housing they already occupy. The 
assistance may be provided by the grantee or through a 
subrecipient, and the LMH (housing) national objective should be 
used. However, if all recipients are not low- or moderate-income 
persons, the activity must be classified 05R, Homeownership 
Assistance, Not Direct. 

Page 225 of 237



14A  Rehabilitation: Single-Unit Residential  
This category includes loans and grants for the rehabilitation of 
privately owned homes. NOTE: Under CDBG, single family means 
one-unit structures. 

 
14B  Rehabilitation: Multi-Unit Residential  

For CDBG, this category includes the rehabilitation of buildings with 
two or more residential units. Under the CDBG program, grantees 
may use 14B for SROs that will provide permanent housing for low- 
and moderate income persons, including the elderly or persons with 
disabilities. SROs intended to provide temporary or transitional 
housing for homeless persons should be classified under the 03 
series, Public Facilities and Improvements, rather than under the 14 
series. 

 
14C  Public Housing Modernization  

This type of activity includes the rehabilitation of housing units 
owned/operated by a public housing authority (PHA) or an Indian 
housing authority (IHA). 

 
14D  Rehabilitation: Other Publicly Owned Residential Buildings  

This type of activity includes housing that is owned by a public 
entity other than a PHA or an IHA. This category may include SROs 
that are owned by a public entity other than a PHA or IHA. (CDBG: 
As discussed under 14B above, if the SROs are to provide 
permanent housing for low income persons, including the elderly or 
handicapped persons, they may be classified under 14D if they are 
owned by a public entity other than a PHA or IHA. If such SROs are 
intended to provide temporary shelter or transitional housing for 
homeless persons, they should be classified under the 03 series, 
Public Facilities and Improvements, rather than under the 14 
series.) 

 
14F  Energy Efficiency Improvements  

Code 14F should be used only when it is clear that the activity 
being funded is a rehabilitation program for the sole purpose of 
promoting energy efficiency (e.g., a weatherization program). 

 
If an activity will provide energy-efficiency improvements for public 
housing units or other publicly owned residential buildings, it should 
be classified as 14C or 14D, as appropriate. 

Page 226 of 237



14G  Acquisition For Rehabilitation  
CDBG: Use code 14G when property is acquired in order that it 
may be rehabilitated for housing. (Use codes 01 or 17A for other 
acquisition activities.) 14G may be used to reflect the cost of only 
the acquisition if the rehabilitation costs will be paid from another 
source, or it may also include both the costs of acquisition and 
rehabilitation if the cost of the rehabilitation is also paid with CDBG 
funds. 
 
For the HOME program, use this code for the acquisition of a 
structure that requires rehabilitation and will be used to provide 
affordable rental housing or Homeownership units. 

 
14H  Rehabilitation Administration  

Use this code for all activity delivery costs (including staff, other 
direct costs, and service costs) directly related to carrying out 
housing rehabilitation activities. Examples of these include 
architectural, engineering, appraisal, and other professional 
services; preparation of work specifications and work write-ups; 
loan processing and loan origination fees; surveys, site, and utility 
plans; application processing; and other fees involving housing 
rehabilitation. 
 
The costs of administering one or more rehabilitation programs may 
be classified as separate activities or they may be included as part 
of the total cost of each rehabilitation activity. Similarly, activities 
such as "rehabilitation counseling" may be included as part of 
housing rehabilitation activities coded 14A-14D and 14F. When 
housing rehabilitation administration is classified in the 14 series, a 
national objective must be identified. However, housing 
rehabilitation administration may be included under General 
Program Administration, code 21, without a national objective being 
identified. If classified in this manner, though, the activity will be 
included under the 20 percent Planning and Administration cap. 

 
141 Lead-Based Paint/Lead Hazard Test/Abatement  

Use this code when the primary goal of a housing rehabilitation 
activity is for lead-based paint and hazard evaluation and reduction. 

 
16A  Residential Historic Preservation  

This code should only be used for the rehabilitation of historic 
residential structures. 

 
19A  This is not a valid code. 

Refer to code 21H. HOME Administration/Planning Costs of PJs. 

Page 227 of 237



19B  This is not a valid code. 
Refer to code 211, HOME CHDO Operating Expenses. 

Page 228 of 237



Commercial/lndustrial Improvements by Grantee or Non-Profit 
 
 
These codes may be used to identify special economic development activities 
carried out by the grantee or through a public or private non-profit subrecipient. 
Under this series, CDBG funds are not given to a specific for-profit business or 
businesses. Assistance to for-profits for economic development projects should 
be classified under the 18 series. 
 
 
 

17A  Commercial/lndustrial Land Acquisition/Disposition  
Use code 17A if the grantee or subrecipient will acquire land, clear 
structures, or package commercial or industrial property for a 
special economic development activity, like creating an industrial 
park. 

 
17B  Commercial/lndustrial Infrastructure Development  

Use code 17B if the grantee or subrecipient will make street 
improvements, water improvements, parking additions, rail 
transport improvements, or other improvements to a site for a 
special economic development activity. This category may include 
installation of public improvements in an industrial site or 
construction of streets/roads to and through commercial/industrial 
areas. 

 
17C  Commercial/lndustrial Building Acquisition, Construction, 

Rehabilitation  
Use code 17C if the grantee or subrecipient will acquire, construct, 
or rehabilitate a commercial/industrial building for a special 
economic development activity. 

 
17D  Other Commercial/lndustrial Improvements  

Use this code for other commercial and industrial improvements 
undertaken by the grantee or a non-profit for a special economic 
development activity that is not covered by 17A, 17B, or 17C. 

Page 229 of 237



Direct Economic Development Assistance to Private For-Profits 
 
 
Direct assistance to a for-profit entity, provided either by the grantee or through a 
subrecipient, should be classified under the 18 series. 
 
 
14E  Rehabilitation: Publicly or Privately Owned Commercial/Industrial  

Use code 14E only if the rehabilitation will be limited to 
improvements to the exterior of a commercial building (generally 
referred to as "facade improvements") or to the correction of code 
violations. 

 
NOTE: Rehabilitation of public facilities should be classified under 
the 03 series, Public Facilities and Improvements. Also, code 17C 
(Commercial/Industrial Building Acquisition, Construction, and 
Rehabilitation) should be used for commercial and industrial 
building rehabilitation conducted by the grantee or a non-profit as 
part of a special economic development activity. Code 17B 
(Commercial/Industrial Infrastructure Development) should be used 
to indicate funds a grantee or non-profit subrecipient uses to 
rehabilitate a privately owned commercial/industrial building. 

 

18A  ED Direct: Direct Financial Assistance to For-Profit Business  
Use code 18A if the grantee or subrecipient will provide financial 
assistance to a for-profit business. Examples may include loans, 
loan guarantees, or grants to acquire property, clear structures, 
construct or rehabilitate a building, and/or purchase equipment. 
Activities coded 18A generally use a national objective code of LMJ 
(indicating a benefit to low and moderate-income persons on the 
basis of the creation or retention of jobs) and report job 
creation/retention accomplishments. 

 
18B  ED Direct: Technical Assistance  

Use code 18B if a grantee or subrecipient will provide technical 
assistance to for-profit businesses. This includes workshops, 
marketing, or referrals. 

 
18C  Micro-Enterprise Assistance  

Use code 18C for activities that involve providing financial 
assistance, technical assistance, or general support 
services/programs to owners of and persons developing 
micro-enterprises. (A micro-enterprise is a business with five or 
fewer employees, including the owner(s).) 

Page 230 of 237



General Administrative and Planning Costs 
 
 
20 Planning  

Use code 20 for planning activities identified by the grantee—
except those planning activities conducted by HOME participating 
jurisdictions (PJs), which should be coded 21H. 

 
Examples of the types of activities included under planning and 
capacity building include development of comprehensive plans (for 
example, a consolidated plan), energy strategies, community 
development plans, environmental studies, area neighborhood 
plans, and functional plans.  NOTE: A national objective is not 
required for planning activities. 

 
21A  General Program Administration  

This code is used to indicate reasonable costs of overall program 
management, coordination, monitoring, and evaluation. Such costs 
include (but are not limited to) salaries, wages, and related costs of 
the recipient's staff or other staff engaged in program 
administration, which includes (but is not limited to) providing 
information about the program, preparing program budgets and 
schedules, preparing reports, and other costs for goods or services 
needed for administration of the program. This code should also be 
used to report the use of CDBG funds to administer a federally 
designated Empowerment Zone or Enterprise Community, or to 
administer the HOME program. 

 
21B  Indirect Costs 

Use this code to indicate costs charged to a program under an 
indirect cost allocation plan. 

 
21C  Public Information  

This code is used for the provision of information and other 
resources to residents and citizen organizations participating in the 
planning, implementation, or assessment of activities. 

Page 231 of 237



21D  Fair Housing Activities 
(Subject to 20 percent Administration cap.) Use code 21 D to 
identify fair housing activities that are to be included among 
General Program Administration activities. Fair housing activities 
classified under 21D are subject to the 20 percent Planning and 
Administration cap but do not have to have a national objective 
identified. (NOTE: Fair housing activities carried out as a public 
service rather than as part of program administration may be 
classified under 05J, Fair Housing Activities.) 
 

21E  Submissions or Applications for Federal Programs  
Use this code for the preparation of documents required for 
submission to HUD to receive funds under the CDBG program and 
to prepare applications for other federal programs when the grantee 
has determined that such activities are necessary to achieve its 
community development needs. 

 
21F  This is not a valid code.  

Refer to code 05S, Rental Housing Subsidies (HOME 
Tenant-Based Rental Assistance). 

 
21G  This is not a valid code. 

Refer to code 05T, Security Deposits. 
 
21H  HOME Administration/Planning Cost of PJs 

(Subject to 10 percent Administration cap.)  
Administration and planning costs of a HOME participating 
jurisdiction (PJ) may include program management, coordination, 
planning, monitoring, and evaluation activities. 

 
21I  HOME CHDO Operating Expenses 

(Subject to 5 percent Operating Expenses cap.)  
Use this code to indicate expenses incurred for operating costs 
associated with a CHDO carrying out its activities. The actual costs 
of new housing construction, acquisition, and rehabilitation should 
not be assigned this code. 

Page 232 of 237



          Other 
 
 
04 Clearance and Demolition 

Included under this code are activities that involve the clearance or 
demolition of buildings and improvements, or the movement of 
structures to other sites. 

 
04A  Clean-up of Contaminated Sites/Brownfields  

Use this code for activities that are designed primarily for cleaning 
toxic/environmental waste or contamination from a site. 

 

06 Interim Assistance 
  There are two circumstances under with the Interim Assistance 
code may be used: 
 

a. When making limited improvements (e.g., repair of streets, 
sidewalks, or public buildings) to areas with determinable signs of 
physical deterioration when the improvements are intended to 
arrest deterioration prior to permanent improvements being made. 

 
b. When the activity will alleviate an emergency condition threatening 

public health and safety, such as emergency removal of tree limbs 
or other debris after a major storm. 

 
07 Urban Renewal Completion 

This code should be used only if the assistance will be used for the 
completion of urban renewal projects. (This code refers to the 
close-out of the urban renewal categorical grant program that 
preceded CDBG; active urban renewal projects that are now being 
completed are generally located in large cities.) Activities involving 
downtown renewal, downtown redevelopment, or urban renewal 
should NOT be coded 07 unless it is clear that the activity will result 
in the closing out of an urban renewal project. 

08 Relocation 
Funds may be used for relocation payments and assistance to 
displaced persons, including individuals, families, businesses, 
non-profit organizations, and farms. 

 
09 Loss of Rental Income 

This activity involves the use of funds to pay housing owners for the 
loss of rental income incurred by holding (for temporary periods) 
housing units to be used for the relocation of individuals and 
families displaced by CDBG-assisted activities. 

Page 233 of 237



10 Removal of Architectural Barriers 
NOTE: This code should NOT be used for activities assisted 
on or after December 11, 1995. Effective December 11, 1995, 
assisted activities must be classified as either Housing under the 14 
series or as Public Facilities and Improvements under the 03 
series. 
 
Use this code for activities assisted prior to December 11, 1995, 
when the activity was undertaken for the purpose of improving the 
accessibility of facilities for persons with disabilities. Some common 
activities within this category include curb cuts, wheelchair ramps, 
or alterations to buildings for increasing handicapped accessibility, 
such as wider doorways or elevators. This code should be used for 
public facilities, buildings, or private residences where CDBG funds 
are used to remove barriers for increasing handicapped 
accessibility. 

 
11 Privately Owned Utilities 

This code should be used for an activity that involves the use of 
CDBG funds to acquire, reconstruct, rehabilitate, or install the 
distribution lines and facilities of privately owned utilities, including 
placing new or existing distribution facilities and lines underground. 

 
15 Code Enforcement  

Code enforcement involves the payment of salaries and overhead 
costs directly related to the enforcement of local codes. Use this 
code only for payment of costs associated with property inspection 
and follow-up action, such as legal proceedings. If CDBG funds will 
be used to correct code violations, use the appropriate 
rehabilitation code. 
 

16B  Non-Residential Historic Preservation  
This code should be used for any non-residential historic building 
that will be rehabilitated. Examples include the rehabilitation of an 
historic building for use by an historic preservation society, the 
renovation of an historic building for use as a museum, or the 
renovation of an historic building for use as a neighborhood facility. 

 
19C  CDBG Non-Profit Organization Capacity Building  

Use this code for activities funded under the CDBG program that 
increase the capacity of non-profit organizations to carry out eligible 
neighborhood revitalization or economic development activities. 
Activities that strengthen non-profits may include providing staff 
with specialized training and technical assistance. 

Page 234 of 237



19D  CDBG Assistance to Institutions of Higher Education  
Use this code when assistance is provided to institutions of higher 
education that have demonstrated a capacity to carry out eligible 
activities. 

 
19E  CDBG Operation and Repair of Foreclosed Property  

This code should be used for activities that use CDBG funds to 
make essential repairs and to pay operating expenses necessary to 
maintain the habitability of housing units acquired through tax 
foreclosure in order to prevent abandonment and deterioration of 
such housing primarily in low- and moderate-income 
neighborhoods. 

 
19F  Repayments of Section 108 Loan Principal  

Use this code to indicate repayment of principal for a Section 108 
Loan Guarantee. 

 
21 Unprogrammed Funds  

This code should only be used to identify funds that have not been 
programmed for use. This category may include funds identified as 
reserve or contingency funds. 
 
 
 

HUD – Office of Community Planning and Development 
Revised 3/98 
 
 

Page 235 of 237



RESOLUTION NO. 15-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CUDAHY CITY 
COUNCIL APPROVING PROJECTS/PROGRAMS FOR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
FUNDING DURING THE 2016-17 FISCAL YEAR 

 
 

WHEREAS, on August 22, 1974, the President of the United States signed into 
law the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (Act); and 
 

WHEREAS, the primary goals of Title I of the Act are the development of viable 
urban communities by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment, and 
expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons of low and moderate income; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Cudahy (“City”) has been designated an “Entitlement 
City” by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, which 
entitles the City to receive an annual allocation of Community Development (“CDBG”) 
funds to implement housing and community development projects throughout the City; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has received notification of the availability of $325,861 in 
Federal CDBG funds to further the attainment of these goals during Fiscal Year 2016-
2017; and 
 

WHEREAS, community-based and other local non-profit organizations that serve 
the residents of Cudahy have been invited to submit proposals for the utilization of 
these funds; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Cudahy City Council has published information regarding eligible 
activities under the Act and has conducted a public hearing to solicit suggestions from 
the community for the utilization of these funds. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Cudahy City Council hereby 
allocates the City’s available CDBG funds for the following purposes: 

     
 Single Unit Housing Rehabilitation   $  132,456 

Business Assistance Program    $    23,403 
Code Enforcement      $  120,391 
Clara Park Senior Services    $    21,000 
Clara Street Park Food Distribution   $    28,611              

Total    $  325,861  
 
 

Page 236 of 237



 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of 
Cudahy at its regular meeting on this 14th day of December, 2015. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Cristian Markovich 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST:        
 
_____________________________              
Laura Valdivia      
Interim City Clerk       

 

Page 237 of 237


	10A Urban Futures.pdf
	10A. Attachment A - Reso_SA_approve_PSA_2d_Amd.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. SA _______
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSTAIN:
	ABSENT:
	Laura Valdivia
	Secretary to the Successor Agency
	EXHIBIT A:
	SECOND AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH URBAN FUTURES, INC.

	10A. Attachment B - SA_Urban Futures_PSA_2d_Amd-CLEAN WITH SCOPE.pdf
	SECOND AMENDMENT
	TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	(Parties:  Urban Futures, Inc. and Successor Agency)
	RECITALS
	WHEREAS, the City Council has elected to serve as Successor Agency; and
	ATTACHMENT “1”
	AMENDED MASTER AGREEMENT
	ATTACHMENT “2”
	EXTRA WORK
	The Extra Work involves work performed and/or guidance to the Successor Agency and its staff to respond to questions that have been and/or may be raised by Department of Finance, Oversight Board, and/or Successor Agency members and/or other interested...

	10A. Attachment E - Reso_SA_approve_loan.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. SA ____
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSTAIN:
	ABSENT:
	Laura Valdivia
	Secretary
	EXHIBIT A – LOAN AGREEMENT NO. 16-17:18

	10A. Attachment F - Loan_Agreement_City_to_SA_2015_12 (3).pdf
	CITY OF CUDAHY
	CITY OF CUDAHY AS
	SUCCESSOR AGENCY LOAN AGREEMENT
	for work performed and/or guidance to the Successor Agency and its staff to respond to questions that have been and/or may be raised by Department of Finance, Oversight Board, and/or Successor Agency members and/or other interested parties concerning ...
	The Extra Work may also include guidance and/or work performed concerning the implementation and administration of the Department of Finance approved LRPMP.  The total amount of for this Extra Work as provided in the Second Amendment to the Initial Ag...
	SECTION 4.  Source of Repayment of the Loan. . The Loan shall be repaid by the Successor Agency from revenues available to the Successor Agency.

	10A. Attachment F - Loan_Agreement_City_to_SA_2015_12 (3).pdf
	CITY OF CUDAHY
	CITY OF CUDAHY AS
	SUCCESSOR AGENCY LOAN AGREEMENT
	for work performed and/or guidance to the Successor Agency and its staff to respond to questions that have been and/or may be raised by Department of Finance, Oversight Board, and/or Successor Agency members and/or other interested parties concerning ...
	The Extra Work may also include guidance and/or work performed concerning the implementation and administration of the Department of Finance approved LRPMP.  The total amount of for this Extra Work as provided in the Second Amendment to the Initial Ag...
	SECTION 4.  Source of Repayment of the Loan. . The Loan shall be repaid by the Successor Agency from revenues available to the Successor Agency.


	10C Loan Agmt No. 16-17 8.pdf
	10C. Attachment A - Reso_City_approve_loan.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. _______
	EXHIBIT A – LOAN AGREEMENT NO. 16-17:8

	10C. Attachment B - Loan_Agreement_City_to_SA_2015_12 (3).pdf
	CITY OF CUDAHY
	CITY OF CUDAHY AS
	SUCCESSOR AGENCY LOAN AGREEMENT
	for work performed and/or guidance to the Successor Agency and its staff to respond to questions that have been and/or may be raised by Department of Finance, Oversight Board, and/or Successor Agency members and/or other interested parties concerning ...
	The Extra Work may also include guidance and/or work performed concerning the implementation and administration of the Department of Finance approved LRPMP.  The total amount of for this Extra Work as provided in the Second Amendment to the Initial Ag...
	SECTION 4.  Source of Repayment of the Loan. . The Loan shall be repaid by the Successor Agency from revenues available to the Successor Agency.


	10D Demands and Payroll.pdf
	The City Council is requested to approve the Demands and Payroll in the amount of $1,186,494.84 including Cash and Investment Report by Fund for the month of October 2015.
	BACKGROUND
	1. On October 13, 1993, Ordinance 476 was adopted and codified as Cudahy Municipal Code Section 3.04.080 indicating, "Except as otherwise provided, no warrant shall be drawn or evidence of indebtedness issued unless there shall be at the time sufficie...
	2. On October 2015, the following demands and payroll have been audited by the Finance Department:
	10D. Attachment D - FY2015 Cash Summary Report.pdf
	Sheet1


	10E. LAIF 2015 10 31 - JBCKD.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION
	The City Council is requested to approve the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report for the month of October 2015 in the amount of $5,280,472.95.




